
Please silence your cell phones. 
 

OPEN SESSION 
 

 
REGULAR OPEN MEETING OF THE THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 
 

Tuesday, March 17, 2020 - 9:30 a.m. 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room 24351 El Toro Road 

Laguna Woods, California 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA 

 

1. Call meeting to order / Establish Quorum – President Parsons 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Frankel 
 
3. Acknowledge Media 
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

5. Approval of Minutes 
 

a. February 18, 2020 – Regular Open Meeting 
 

6. Report of the Chair 
 

a. Employee Recognition – Dan Yost & Kendra Osborn 
     
7. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker) - At this time Members only may 

address the Board of Directors regarding items not on the agenda and within the 
jurisdiction of this Board of Directors. There is a maximum time limit of three 
minutes per speaker and a speaker may only address the Board once during this 
period.  The Board reserves the right to limit the total amount of time allotted for the 
Open Forum. 

 

8. Responses to Open Forum Speakers 
 
9. CEO Report 

a.  Introduction of Carlos Rojas, Director of Security  
  
10. Consent Calendar - All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are 

recommended for action by committees and will be enacted by the Board by one 
motion. In the event that an item is removed from the Consent Calendar by 



 
 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Regular Board Open Session Meeting  
March 17, 2020 
Page 2 of 5 
 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 
 

members of the Board, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and 
action by the Board. 

 

a.  Architectural Control and Standards Committee Recommendations: 

 (1) Recommendation to Approve: 3288-B (El Doble, SB703A, P46) – Request 
to Replace Existing 5’ Gate/Fence with 7’ Gate/Fence 

 

b. Landscape Committee Recommendations: 

 (1) Recommend to Approve Tree Removal Request: 2272-B Via Mariposa 
East (Baskin) – One Star Pine tree as it meets guidelines established in 
Resolution 03-11-149 

(2) Recommend to Approve Tree Removal Request:  3166-A Alta Vista (Katz) 
– One Indian Laurel Fig as it meets guidelines established in Resolution
03-11-149 

 

c. Finance Committee Recommendations: 
(1) Ratify a Decision to Award a Contract to Association Reserves, Inc. for the 

2021 Reserve Study Update  
 

d. Consistent with its statutory obligations the Board members individually
reviewed  Third Laguna Hills Mutual preliminary financials for the month of 
January 2020, and by this vote ratify that such review be confirmed in this
month’s Board Member Open Session Meeting minutes per Civil Code §5501.
 

e. Termination of Third Laguna Hills Mutual Participation on Village Energy Task 
Force and Replacement with Energy Research Group 
 

11. Unfinished Business  
 

a. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Resolution for a Lease Cap and Lease Waiting 
List Policy (FEBRUARY Initial Notification – 28-day notification for member review and 
comment to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied) 
 

b. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Resolution for a Harassment Policy (FEBRUARY 
Initial Notification – 28-day notification for member review and comment to comply with 
Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied) 
 

c. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Resolution for a Nuisance Policy (FEBRUARY 
Initial Notification – 28-day notification for member review and comment to comply with 
Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied) 
 

d. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Resolution for a Good Standing Policy 
(FEBRUARY Initial Notification – 28-day notification for member review and comment to 
comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied) 
 
 



 
 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Regular Board Open Session Meeting  
March 17, 2020 
Page 3 of 5 
 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 
 

e. Entertain a Motion to Adopt a Resolution for Election Rules (FEBRUARY Initial 
Notification – Must postpone 28-days for member review and comment to comply with 
Civil Code §4360) 
 

12. New Business 
 

a. Landscape Committee Recommendation 
Entertain a Motion to Deny Tree Removal Request: 5381-A Avenida Sosiega 
(Williams) – One American Sweet Gum tree 
 

13. Committee Reports 
 

a. Report of the Finance Committee / Financial Report – Director Pearlstone. 
The Committee met on March 3, 2020; next meeting  April 2, 2020, at 1:30 
p.m. in the Board Room  

(1)  Treasurer’s Report 
(2)  Third Finance Committee Report 
(3)  Resales/Leasing Reports 

 

b. Report of the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee – Director
Parsons. The Committee met on February 24, 2020; next meeting April 27, 
2020, at 9:30 a.m. in the Board Room 
 

c. Report of the Communications Committee – Director McCary.  The 
Committee met on October 9, 2019; next meeting TBA. 
 

d. Report of the Maintenance and Construction Committee – President Parsons. 
The Committee met on March 2, 2020; next meeting May 4, 2020, at 1:30
p.m. in the Board Room.  
 

(1) Report of the Parking and Golf Cart Task Force – President Parsons. 
The Task Force met on January 6, 2019; next meeting TBA.  

 
(2) Garden Villa Rec. Room Sub-Committee – Director Jarrett. The 

Committee met February 10, 2020; next meeting June 10, 2020.  
 

e. Report of the Landscape Committee – Director Jarrett.  The Committee met 
on March 5, 2020; next meeting April 2, 2020, at 9:30 a.m. in the Board 
Room.  
 

f. Report of the Water Subcommittee – Director Karimi.  The subcommittee met 
on October 9, 2019; next meeting TBA. 
 

g. Report of the Resident Policy and Compliance Committee – Director Jarrett. 
The Task Force met on January 15, 2020; next meeting TBA  
 

h. Report of the Village Energy Task Force – Director Frankel.  The Task Force 



 
 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Regular Board Open Session Meeting  
March 17, 2020 
Page 4 of 5 
 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 
 

met on March 4, 2020.  
 

14. GRF Committee Highlights 
 

a. Community Activities Committee – Director McCary. The Committee met on 
March 12, 2020; next meeting May 14, 2020, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room.
  

b. GRF Finance Committee – Director Pearlstone. The Committee met on 
February 19, 2019; next meeting April 22, 2020, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board 
Room.  
 

c. GRF Landscape Committee – Director Engdahl.  The Committee met on 
February 12, 2019; next meeting May 13, 2020, at 1:30p.m. in the Board 
Room.   
 

d. GRF Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director Frankel –   The 
Committee met on February 12, 2020; next meeting April 8, 2020, at 9:30
a.m. in the Board Room 
 

(1) PAC Renovation Ad Hoc Committee – Director Pearlstone. The 
Committee met on December 12, 2019. 

 

e. Media and Communications Committee – Director McCary.  The Committee 
met on March 16, 2020; next meeting April 20, 2020, at 9:30 a.m. in the 
Board Room 
 

f. Mobility and Vehicles Committee – Director Frankel – The Committee met on 
February 5, 2020; next meeting April 1, 2020, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room
 

g. Security and Community Access Committee – Director Engdahl. The 
Committee met on February 24, 2020; next meeting April 27, 2020, at 1:30 
p.m. in the Board Room 
 

(1) Disaster Preparedness Task Force – Director Engdahl.  The Task 
Force  met on January 28, 2020; next meeting March 31, 2020, 9:30 
a.m. in the Board Room 

 

h. Report of the Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings – Director Frankel.  The 
hearings were held on February 19, 2020; next hearings March 18, 2020, at 
9:00 a.m. in the Board Room and 1:00 p.m. in the Sycamore Room 
 

15. Future Agenda Items-- All matters listed under Future Agenda Items are items for 
a future Board Meetings.  No action will be taken by the Board on these agenda 
items at this meeting.  The Board will take action on these items at a future Board 
Meeting.    

 

a. Parking Report 



 
 
Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Regular Board Open Session Meeting  
March 17, 2020 
Page 5 of 5 
 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 
 

 

b. Alternative Heat Source Policy (August initial notification—September 
postponed) 
 

c. Resident Suggestion Program 
 

d. Businesses Owning Property within Laguna Woods Village 
 

e. Resolution to Designate a Building as Non-Smoking (FEBRUARY referred back to 
Committee for revisions) 
 

f. Alterations Review 
 

16.    Director's Comments 
 

17. Recess - At this time the Meeting will recess for lunch and reconvene to Executive 
Session to discuss the following matters per California Civil Code §4935.   

 

Closed Session Agenda  
Approval of Agenda 
Approval of the Following Meeting Minutes; 

(a) February 18, 2020—Regular Closed Session 
Discuss and Consider Member Matters 
Discuss Personnel Matters 
Discuss and Consider Contractual Matters 
Discuss and Consider Litigation Matters 
 

19. Adjourn 



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 1 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 2 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 3 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 4 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 5 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 6 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 7 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 8 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 9 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 10 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 11 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 12 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 13 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 14 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 15 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 16 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 17 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 18 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 19 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 20 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 21 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 22 of 23



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 23 of 23



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 17, 2020 

FOR: Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Variance Request 
Ms. Diane Landers of 3288-B (El Doble, SB703A, P46) 
Request to Replace Existing 5’ Gate/Fence with 7’ Gate/Fence 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the request to replace the existing gate/fence with the conditions in Appendix A. 

BACKGROUND 

Ms. Landers of 3288-B San Amadeo, a La Princesa style unit, requests Board approval of a 
variance to install a white vinyl fence around her previously extended rear patio.  

The first alteration gate/fence was installed in 1973 via Mutual Consent 3530a. It spans the 
width of the entryway to the unit (approx. 13’-10”), and measures 5’ tall. The existing alteration 
is of wrought iron and meets existing Mutual Standards for Fences and Gates.  

Due to the current Third Mutual Standard 13: Fences, Wrought Iron Section 2.1 stating ‘No 
fence shall be over 5'-0" in height, inclusive of wall and fence, nor under 12" in height.’ staff 
require Board approval to issue a Mutual Consent for a 7’ tall fence with gate. 

There is no land use agreement on file. 

Variance request has been submitted for review (Attachment 1). 

The cost of the proposed alteration would be borne by the Member. 

DISCUSSION 

Ms. Landers proposes to remove the existing 5’ tall gate/fence and replace with a 7’ tall 
wrought iron fence with gate. The location at the entry between unit B’s room addition and unit 
C’s garage would remain the same, as well as using the same wrought iron materials (see 
Attachment 1).  

Existing Wrought Iron Fencing Mutual Standards will ensure fence fixtures and posts are 
sufficient for the project. 

Staff recommends approval of this request in conjunction with current Third Mutual’s Common 
Area Use Policy (RESOLUTION 03-18-146) ‘BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that no further 
alteration may be approved or constructed on any previously approved or “grandfathered” 

Agenda Item # 10a(1)
Page 1 of 15



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 3288-B 
March 17, 2020 
Page 2 
 
alteration that encroaches upon common area, other than like for like, that augments, enlarges, or 
changes the construction, purpose, or use of the previously approved or grandfathered alteration;’ 

Staff believes the proposed alteration falls within the like-for-like replacement and has no 
perceived negative effects on neighboring units.  
 
There are no previous variances for similar requests on file.    
 
Currently, there are no open Mutual Consent for Unit 5341-A.  

A Neighbor Awareness Notice was sent to Units 3286-A, 3286-B, 3287-A, 3287-B, 3288-A and 
3288-C on November 25, 2019, due to line of sight and/or effects of construction noise/debris 
within 150’ of the alteration. 

At the time of writing the report, there has been no response to the Neighbor Awareness 
Notices. 

All future costs and maintenance associated with the subject alterations are the responsibility 
of the Mutual member(s) at 3288-B. Per the request of the Architectural Control and Standard 
Committee, staff has included photos and a site map as Attachments 2 and 3. 

 
Prepared By: Gavin Fogg, Inspections Supervisor 
   
Reviewed By: Brett Crane, Permits, Inspections & Restoration Manager 
 
 Alisa Rocha, Alterations Coordinator 
 
 Ernesto Munoz, Maintenance & Construction Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 

Appendix A:  Conditions of Approval 
Appendix B: Condo Plan  
Attachment 1: Variance Request  
Attachment 2:  Photos 
Attachment 3:  Site Map 
Attachment 4: Resolution 03-20-XX 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 2 of 15



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 3288-B 
March 17, 2020 
Page 3 
 

APPENDIX A – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 

Conditions of approval would be as follows: 

1. Alteration must be in conjunction with Mutual Standards: 13 – Fences Wrought Iron and 17 
- Gates.  

2. No  improvement  shall  be  installed,  constructed,  modified  or  altered  at  unit 3288-B, 
(“Property”) within the Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”) unless and until a Mutual 
Consent for Alterations application for the improvement has been made to, and 
approved, in writing, by, the Village Management Services, Inc. (“VMS, Inc.”), 
Alterations Division (“Division”), or, in the event of a Variance from the Mutual’s 
Alteration Standards, the Architectural Control and Standards Committee (“ACSC”). In 
the event written permission is given for the installation, construction, modification or 
alteration of any improvement(s) upon the Property, the Member Owner or Owners 
(“Member Owner”) agrees to comply with the Mutual’s Governing Documents and any 
specific terms or conditions imposed, and that the installation, construction, modification 
or alteration shall be in strict compliance with the terms of the approval. 

3. A  Variance for Unit Alterations has been granted at 3288-B for Gate and Fence 
Replacement at Entry, subject to the attached plans stamped approved and is subject to 
the final inspection by the Division. Any variations to the approved attached plans are not 
allowed and could result in a stop work notice and/or severe fines to the Member. 

4. All costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of the improvement, 
present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s Member Owner at 3288-B and 
all future Mutual members at 3288-B. 

5. Parking of contractors or other invitees’ vehicles is prohibited in covered resident parking, 
open resident spaces, handicapped spaces or fire lanes. Contractors or other invitees must 
park on the street. To the extent possible contractors’ or other invitees’ vehicles should be 
limited in number. 

6. Member Owner(s) of the Property must sign and submit to the Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., at 
the Division office located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center, an executed 
and notarized “Covenant to Run with the Land” for a proposed improvement that would 
utilize any portion of the Mutual’s Common Area. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual 
Consent for Unit Alterations, that “Recordable Common Area Agreement” must be filed 
with the Orange County Clerk/Recorder. 

7. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, the Member Owner shall 
request a Landscape Department inspection in order to assure all landscape, irrigation, 
and drainage modifications associated  with  the improvements are identified and 
completed by the Landscape Department at the expense of the Member Owner. All gutter 
drainage shall be directed away from structures, free standing walls, foundations, and 
pedestrian walkways. 

8. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, any altered exterior surface 
should match the Building color; vinyl fence/gate will be either white or taupe, tubular steel 
or wrought iron fence/gate will be black or white; the approved colors and materials are 

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 3 of 15



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 3288-B 
March 17, 2020 
Page 4 
 

identified as “Third Laguna Hill Mutual Color Selections” at Resident Services, located at 
the Community Center first floor. 

9. Member Owner shall be responsible for all activity by contractors, subcontractors, material 
suppliers and their employees and agents and any others who perform work on the 
Property, including any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents, including, but not 
limited to, traffic and parking violations, maintenance of a clean job site at all times, and 
use of Mutual property for storage of equipment or materials without prior approval. 
Member Owner acknowledges and agrees that all such persons are his/her invitees. 
Member Owner shall be responsible for informing all his/her invitees of the Mutual’s Rules 
and Regulations.   

10. Member Owner hereby consents to and grants to the Mutual and the Division, and their 
representatives, a right of entry upon the Property at any time to be used to inspect the 
Property and the improvements thereon and for the Mutual and the Division, and their 
representatives and contractors to remedy any violation upon the   Property, including, but 
not limited to, removing trash, removing any improvement installed without approval or 
modifying an improvement to bring the same into compliance with the terms of the 
approval. 

11. Member Owner shall be liable for any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents by 
any invitee, including any fine, assessment, traffic or other charge levied in connection 
therewith. 

12. Member is responsible for following the gate clearance process in place to admit 
contractors and other invitees. 

13. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, the Member shall post a 
Conformance Deposit in the amount of $250 for all improvements exceeding a total of 
$500.The Conformance Deposit will be held until Final City Building Permit Issuance if 
required, to assure no damages to Mutual property occurs during construction, including, 
but not limited to, internet/TV, landscaping, or exterior walls/roof. 

14. The Conformance Deposit shall be held by the Mutual and applied, at the Mutual’s sole 
discretion, to any fine levied against the Member Owner or the Property, to cover and/or 
recoup any costs whatsoever, including, but not be limited to, administrative and legal 
costs, incurred by the Mutual or VMS, Inc., in connection with the Property, or to any 
unpaid charges or assessments on the Mutual’s account for the Property. For example, 
the Mutual could apply all or a portion of the Conformance Deposit to cover the following: 
fines levied against any invitee of Member Owner; fines levied for  construction  violations;  
costs  incurred  by  the Mutual in repairing damage to Mutual property caused by Member  
Owner’s contractor or other invitee; costs incurred by the Mutual in curing a violation on 
the Property; costs incurred in removing or altering an improvement upon the Property; or 
to an unpaid assessment, special assessment, late charge, interest or collection costs  
posted  to  the  Mutual’s  account  for  the  Property.  The foregoing list is illustrative only 
and in no way represents the only situations where the Mutual could apply all or a portion 
of the Conformance Deposit. 

15. If at any time the amount of the Conformance Deposit falls below 3/4ths of the amount 
originally required to be posted, Member Owner agrees to immediately deposit additional 
sums with the Mutual in an amount sufficient to return the Conformance Deposit to the 

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 4 of 15



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 3288-B 
March 17, 2020 
Page 5 
 

originally required level. Until the Conformance Deposit is so replenished, an automatic 
stop work order shall be in effect. 

16. Any remaining Conformance Deposit is refundable if the Member Owner notifies the 
Division, in writing, that the improvement(s) for which the Conformance Deposit was 
posted have been completed in accordance with the approval, and the Division  agrees 
with the same.  The Mutual will mail the unused portion of the Conformance Deposit, if 
any, to the Member Owner’s address of record with the Mutual. Under no circumstances 
shall Member Owner be entitled to any interest on any portion of the Conformance 
Deposit. If no written request for return of a Conformance Deposit is made by Member 
Owner within two years from the date when the Conformance Deposit is posted with the 
Mutual, the Conformance Deposit will be deemed forfeited to the Mutual. 

17. All improvements must be installed in accordance with the California State Building Code, 
and the published Mutual Architectural Alterations Standards, Policies and Guidelines. 
See http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com. 

18. During construction, work hours established by the Mutual and the Noise Ordinance set 
forth in the City of Laguna Woods Municipal Code must be adhered to at all times. 

19. During construction, both the Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations and the City Building 
Permit must be on display for public view at all times in a location approved by the 
Division. 

20. It is mandatory that no waste or materials associated with the construction be dumped in 
the Village trash bins; such waste or materials associated with the construction must be 
disposed of offsite by the contractor. 

21. A dumpster is approved for placement at the location identified by Security Staff by calling 
949-580-1400. All dumpsters must conform to the Policy for Temporary Containers. 
Dumpsters must be ordered from the approved City of Laguna Woods waste hauler and 
must be maintained at all times. 

22. A portable bathroom is approved for placement at the location identified by Security Staff 
by calling 949-580-1400. 

23. The Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations expires six months after the date of approval, 
unless an application is submitted with fees and approved by the Division for an extension.  
Only one extension for a maximum of an additional six months may be granted. 

24. Violations of the forgoing conditions or the Mutual’s Governing Documents (See 
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com), including, but not limited to, work outside the 
approved plans, excessive noise, illegal dumping, or working after hours, will result in  
disciplinary action, which could result in a stop work notice, loss of privileges and/or 
severe fines to the Owner Member. Such fines left unpaid will result in forfeiture of a 
portion or all of the Conformance Deposit required above or other legal remedy. 

25.  Mutual member shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Third and its officers, 
directors, committee members and agents from and against any and all claims, demands, 
costs, fines, judgments, settlements and any other costs, expenses, amounts and liabilities 
arising from Mutual  member’s  improvements  and installation, construction, design and 
maintenance of same. 

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 5 of 15

http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/


Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Variance Request 3288-B 
March 17, 2020 
Page 6 
 

APPENDIX B - Condominium Plan 

 

  

Proposed Location 

(Reverse Plan) 

 

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 6 of 15



ATTACHMENT 1 - Variance Request

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 7 of 15

rochaa
Typewritten Text

rochaa
Typewritten Text



ATTACHMENT 1 - Variance Request (continued)

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 8 of 15

foggg
Text Box
3288-B 

foggg
Text Box
Unit C 

foggg
Line

foggg
Callout
Existing and proposed location of Gate and Fence replacement

rochaa
Typewritten Text

rochaa
Typewritten Text

rochaa
Typewritten Text

rochaa
Typewritten Text

rochaa
Typewritten Text

rochaa
Typewritten Text



ATTACHMENT 1 - Variance Request (continued)

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 9 of 15



ATTACHMENT 1 - Variance Request (continued)

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 10 of 15



ATTACHMENT 1 - Variance Request (continued)

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 11 of 15



ATTACHMENT 2 - Photos

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 12 of 15

foggg
Text Box
Entryway

foggg
Text Box
Entryway



ATTACHMENT 2 - Photos (continued)

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 13 of 15

foggg
Text Box
Street View

foggg
Text Box
Street View

rochaa
Typewritten Text

rochaa
Typewritten Text

rochaa
Typewritten Text



ATTACHMENT 3 - Site Map

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 14 of 15

foggg
Text Box
B3286

foggg
Text Box
B3287

foggg
Text Box
B3289

foggg
Text Box
A

foggg
Text Box
B

foggg
Text Box
C

foggg
Callout
Location of Alteration

foggg
Text Box
C

foggg
Text Box
B

foggg
Text Box
A

foggg
Callout
Location of Alteration



 
 
 

RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 
Variance Request 

WHEREAS, Ms. Diane Landers of 3288-B San Amadeo, a La Princesa style unit, is 
requesting Board approval of a variance to replace existing 5’ gate/fence with 7’ 
gate/fence; and, 

WHEREAS, a Neighborhood Awareness Notice was sent to Owners of affected units on 
November 25, 2019, notifying them that an application to make an alteration to a 
neighboring unit had been made and that comments or objections could be made in 
writing to the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee or in person at the 
Architectural Controls and Standards Committee Meeting on February 24, 2020. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on March 17, 2020, the Board of Directors 
hereby approves the request to replace existing 5’ gate/fence with 7’ gate/fence;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, all costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or 
removal of the improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s 
Member Owner at 3288-B and all future Mutual members at 3288-B 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 - Resolution 03-20-XX

Agenda Item # 10a(1) 
Page 15 of 15



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 

Approve the Request for Removal of  
of One Star Pine Tree – 2272-B Via Mariposa East 

WHEREAS, September 20, 2011, that the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 
03-11-149, Tree Removal Guidelines: 

 Unless there is a purposeful reason, trees should not be removed merely 
because they are messy, or because of residents’ personal preferences 
concerning shape, color, size, or fragrance. 

 Trees should not be removed because of view obstruction if the 
obstruction is at a considerable distance from the complaining manor and 
therefore causes only a partial obstruction. 

 Trees on slopes should not be removed if the removal will contribute to the 
destabilization of that slope.   

 Trees which are damaging or will damage a structure, pose a hazard, in 
failing health or interfering with neighboring trees, will be considered for 
removal. 

WHEREAS, on March 5, 2020, the Landscape Committee reviewed a request for 
removal of one Star Pine tree. The request was received from the Member at 2272-
B who cited the reasons as litter/debris, poor condition, and large branches continue 
to fall on the sidewalk and;  

WHEREAS, the Committee determined that the tree meets the guidelines 
established in Resolution 03-11-149 and recommends approving the request for the 
removal of on Star Pine tree located at 2272-B Via Mariposa E.   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 17, 2020, the Board of Directors 
approves the request for the removal of one Star Pine tree located at 2272-B;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.  

 

 

Agenda Item # 10b(1) 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 

Approve the Request for Removal of  
of One Indian Laurel Fig Tree – 3166-A Alta Vista 

WHEREAS, September 20, 2011, that the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 
03-11-149, Tree Removal Guidelines: 

 Unless there is a purposeful reason, trees should not be removed merely 
because they are messy, or because of residents’ personal preferences 
concerning shape, color, size, or fragrance. 

 Trees should not be removed because of view obstruction if the 
obstruction is at a considerable distance from the complaining manor and 
therefore causes only a partial obstruction. 

 Trees on slopes should not be removed if the removal will contribute to the 
destabilization of that slope.   

 Trees which are damaging or will damage a structure, pose a hazard, in 
failing health or interfering with neighboring trees, will be considered for 
removal. 

WHEREAS, on March 5, 2020, the Landscape Committee reviewed a request for 
removal of one Indian Laurel Fig tree. The request was received from the Member at 
3166-A who cited the reasons as overgrown, the dropping of numerous berries, and 
roots growing close to the manor and;  

WHEREAS, the Committee determined that the tree meets the guidelines 
established in Resolution 03-11-149 and recommends approving the request for the 
removal of one Indian Laurel Fig tree located at 3166-A Alta Vista.   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 17, 2020, the Board of Directors 
approves the request for the removal of one Indian Laurel Fig tree located at 3166-
A;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution. 

 

 

Agenda Item # 10b(2) 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 17, 2020
FOR:  Resident Policies and Compliance Committee
SUBJECT: Leasing Cap and Lease Waiting List Policy 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the creation of a wait list to fairly and uniformly manage a wait list when the number of
approved leases reaches the 30 percent cap (1,830 units leased).

BACKGROUND 
Third Mutual established a 30 percent cap on leases by way of Resolution 03-08-106, which
became effective December 1, 2008. The cap on active leases enables owners and
prospective owners to obtain more favorable rates for home loans, maintains a positive owner-
tenant ratio within the community and stabilizes the pool of resident owners who are eligible to
assist with the governance of Third Mutual.

The annual lease rate in Third has trended at 27 percent for many years. However, in January
2017, the leasing rate in Third Mutual rose to 27.5 percent and then dropped back to 27
percent before spiking to 28 percent in October 2018 through December 2018. The rate
remained at 28 percent for nine months in 2019.  The current rate is 28 percent.

Planning forward, it is recommended that a procedure to manage a wait list for excess lease
requests, beyond 30 percent, be established.

DISCUSSION
To manage owner expectations as well as establish a wait list, it is recommended that an extra
step be implemented before the submittal of a lease authorization application. An owner would
initially submit a request for eligibility to lease. If the leasing cap is not met, the owner may
submit a lease authorization application in accordance with the Lease Policy. If the leasing cap
is met, the owner would be added to a wait list that would be prioritized on a first come first
serve basis.

At such time as the number of leases is reduced below the 30 percent cap, or 1,830 leased
units, the owner at the beginning of the wait list would be notified of his eligibility to lease and
given a period of time, 90 days or another set time established by the Board, to submit a
complete lease authorization application. If the eligible owner fails to submit a complete lease
authorization application within the specified time period, he would lose eligibility and have to
resubmit for eligibility and go to the end of the wait list. The next owner on the wait list would
then have the opportunity to complete a lease authorization application and so on.

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 1 of 10



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Thirty Percent Cap on Leasing 
March 17, 2020
Page 2

Ninety days is utilized as the eligibility period throughout proposed policy since this is a
reasonable time for an owner to find a prospective tenant and prepare and submit the required
lease authorization application.

Having an owner confirm he is eligible to lease his unit seeks to prevent the upset that would
result from completing the entire lease application including the proposed lease and tenant
verification along with fees, only to then be told he cannot lease because the leasing cap is
exceeded. Additionally, the proposed eligibility verification step leaves the existing lease
application process intact without requiring it to be amended once again.

An owner who is currently leasing his unit would continue to be eligible to lease his unit for 90
days after the expiration (or termination) of the current lease authorization. If a lease
authorization for an approved lease of the owner’s unit expires and the owner does not submit
a new, complete lease authorization application for a new lease for his unit within 90 days of
the expiration of the prior lease authorization, the owner’s eligibility to lease his unit would
expire.

Furthermore, counsel recommends that language be incorporated into the proposed policy that
would allow for exceptions to the leasing cap for hardship. Doing so would allow the Board, in
its sole discretion, to consider extraordinary circumstances and make the policy more
reasonable and better able to withstand legal/judicial scrutiny if an owner objects to the policy
and tries to challenge its enforcement.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None.

Prepared By: Pamela Bashline, Community Services Manager

Reviewed By: Siobhan Foster, COO

ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT 1 – Leasing Cap and Lease Waiting List Policy
ATT 2 – Resolution 03-20-XX

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 2 of 10



Third Laguna Hills Mutual
Resident Policy And Compliance Task Force
January 15, 2020

ENDORSEMENT (to Board) 

Discuss & Consider the Leasing Cap and Lease Waiting List Policy 

Third Mutual established a 30 percent cap on leases by way of Resolution 03-08-106,
which became effective December 1, 2008. The cap on active leases enables owners
and prospective owners to obtain more favorable rates for home loans, maintains a
positive owner-tenant ratio within the community and stabilizes the pool of resident
owners who are eligible to assist with the governance of Third Mutual.

The annual lease rate in Third has trended at 27 percent for many years. However, in
January 2017, the leasing rate in Third Mutual rose to 27.5 percent and then dropped
back to 27 percent before spiking to 28 percent in October 2018 through December
2018. The rate remained at 28 percent for nine months in 2019.  The current rate is 28
percent.

Planning forward, it is recommended that a procedure to manage a wait list for excess
lease requests, beyond 30 percent, be established.

Director Parsons made a motion to approve the Lease Cap and Lease Waiting List
Policy. Director Engdahl seconded the motion.

By unanimous vote, the motion carried. 

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 3 of 10



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 4 of 10



Leasing Cap and Lease Waiting List Policy 
Resolution 03-20-XX; Adopted ________ XX, 2020 

I. Purpose 

Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Third”) authorizes Members, as defined in the CC&Rs, to
lease their manors, subject to the restrictions and procedures in Third’s Governing 
Documents, including without limitation, the Operating Rules and any policy duly
adopted by the Board. The current procedures relating to Lease Authorization are
contained in Third’s Lease Policy, as may be amended from time to time. 
Notwithstanding the right of Members to lease their manors, Third has in place a limit on
the total number of manors that may be leased at any given time, which is thirty percent
(30%) of the total number of manors in Third (the “Leasing Cap”). 

The purpose of this document is to set for the Leasing Cap and Waiting List Policy (the
“Policy”), which supplements the Lease Policy by providing additional procedures 
relating to eligibility of Members to lease their manors once the Leasing Cap is reached.

II. Restriction on Number of Units Leased; Leasing Eligibility

Pursuant to the Leasing Cap, no more than thirty percent (30%) of the manors in Third
shall be leased at any given time.

A Member desiring to lease his or her manor must submit to Third a written lease
eligibility request for approval of eligibility of the Member to lease his or her manor
based on the total number of manors currently leased in Third. No Member will be
eligible to lease his or her manor or to submit a Lease Authorization Application prior to
receiving written notice of eligibility to lease from Third through an authorized VMS staff
member.

Third will respond to any Member’s written request for eligibility to lease the Member’s 
manor within ten (10) business days of the written submittal of such request to Third.

Third will deny a Member’s request for eligibility to lease the Member’s manor if the
number of currently leased manors, plus the number of manors for which other
Members have received approval to lease but which are not yet leased, plus the
Member’s manor (the “Leased Unit Calculation”) exceeds thirty percent (30%) of the
manors in Third. In such event, the Member will be notified in writing of such denial and
placed on the lease waiting list, as further described below.

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 5 of 10



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Leasing Cap and Lease Waiting List Policy 
Page 2 of 3

If the Leased Unit Calculation does not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the manors in
Third, Third will notify the Member that his or her manor is eligible to lease, and that the
Member has ninety (90) days to submit a complete Lease Authorization Application in
accordance with the Lease Policy. After ninety (90) days from the notice of eligibility to
lease, the Member’s eligibility to lease will expire, and the Member must submit a new
written request for eligibility.  

III. Waiting List

In the event a Member’s request for approval to lease is denied because the Leased
Unit Calculation exceeds thirty percent (30%), the Member shall be placed on a waiting
list maintained by Third, and the Member shall be given an opportunity to submit a
Lease Authorization Application to lease his or her manor when such Member’s name is 
first on the waiting list and the Leased Unit Calculation no longer exceeds thirty percent
(30%) of the manors in Third. The Member will be contacted by Third in writing when
such Member is eligible to lease his or her manor.

If a Member has received notice that such Member is eligible to lease his or her manor,
that Member must submit a complete Lease Authorization Application in accordance
with the Lease Policy within ninety (90) days of the notice of eligibility to lease.  If the
Member fails to submit a complete Application within ninety (90) days of the date of
notice of lease eligibility, the Member’s eligibility to lease shall expire. In such event, the
Member shall be required to submit a new written request for eligibility to lease his or
her manor in accordance with the foregoing provisions; and, if there is a waiting list, the
Member will be placed at the end of such waiting list.

Members who are currently leasing their manors will continue to be eligible to lease
their manor for ninety (90) days after the expiration or termination of the current Lease
Authorization. If a Lease Authorization for an approved lease of a Member’s manor
expires or terminates and the Member does not submit a new, complete Lease
Authorization Application (in accordance with the requirements of the Lease Policy) for
a new lease for the Member’s manor within ninety (90) days of the expiration or
termination of the prior Lease Authorization, the Member’s eligibility to lease his or her
manor shall expire. In such event, the Member shall be required to submit a new written
request for eligibility to lease his or her manor in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this Policy.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event a Member eligible
to lease their manor following termination of a lease wishes to make alterations to the
Member’s manor in accordance with Third’s Governing Documents which may inhibit
their ability to lease the manor within ninety (90) days, the Member may make a written
request for an extension of their ninety (90) day eligibility period; provided, however,
that such request must be based on the necessary permits having already been granted
by the City and Third. The Board may grant such Member’s request in its sole and 
reasonable discretion.  

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 6 of 10



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Leasing Cap and Lease Waiting List Policy 
Page 3 of 3

IV. Exemptions; Enforcement

Upon written request by a Member for eligibility to lease his or her Unit, the Board shall
be authorized and empowered, in its sole and reasonable discretion, to grant a hardship
exemption for the Member with respect to the Leasing Cap. For purposes of this Policy,
a “hardship” shall be defined as the need of a Member to lease his or her manor as a
result of an unforeseeable event and/or because enforcement of the Leasing Cap
against the Member could reasonably subject the Member to suffer a severe financial
difficulty.  

If a Member submits a Lease Authorization Application in accordance with the Lease
Policy without first requesting and receiving written approval for eligibility to lease, the
Application will be rejected and the fee returned, with instructions for the Member to first
obtain written approval of eligibility to lease.

If a Member leases his or her manor without approval from the Board, or is otherwise in
violation of the provisions of this Policy or the Lease Policy, the Member shall be subject
to disciplinary measures, including, but not limited to: (A) a monetary penalty in an
amount to be determined by the Board; (B) other disciplinary measures; and/or (C) a
reimbursement assessment in an amount equal to the costs incurred by Third related to
addressing such violation, including, without limitation, attorneys' fees and costs,
irrespective of whether Third is able to obtain a court order to evict the tenant or
otherwise effectuate the legal eviction of the non-compliant tenant from the Member’s 
manor.

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 7 of 10



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 8 of 10



RESOLUTION 03-19-XX 

Leasing Cap and Lease Waiting List Policy 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Third”) held a
meeting on [DATE], 2020, at which a quorum of the Board was present; 

WHEREAS, the Board is obligated to enforce the provisions set forth in Third’s governing
documents, including without limitation, the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and
Restrictions (CC&Rs), Bylaws, and Operating Rules (collectively, the “Governing Documents”);
and

WHEREAS, on October 21, 2008, the Board adopted Resolution M3-08-106, which required
that a minimum of seventy percent (70%) of the manors in Third be owner occupied at all times
and that a maximum of thirty percent (30%) of the manors may be leased at any given time
(the “Leasing Cap”), effective as of December 1, 2008;

WHEREAS, since the time the Leasing Cap was implemented by the Board and became
effective as an operating rule of Third, the number of manors leased has remained below the
Leasing Cap, however the number of leased manors has steadily risen and will soon reach the
Leasing Cap;

WHEREAS, while the Leasing Cap has been in effect since December 2008, specific
procedures relating to the monitoring of the Leasing Cap, the implementation of a waiting list
for leasing, and the process for leasing a manor once the Leasing Cap has been met have not
been adopted by Third;

WHEREAS, given the approach of the number of leased manors to the Leasing Cap, the
Board has determined that it would be in the best interests of Third to adopt procedures
regarding leasing once the Leasing Cap has been met to be added to Third’s Operating Rules;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE], 2020 that the Board of Third hereby 
approves and adopts the below Leasing Cap and Lease Waiting List Policy, which provides
Third’s policy and procedures with regard to the leasing of manors once the Leasing Cap has
been met, and incorporates same into the Third’s Operating Rules as a part of Third’s 
Governing Documents; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of Third are hereby authorized on behalf
of Third to carry out this Resolution.

FEBRUARY Initial Notification
28-day notification for Member review and comment to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied. 

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 9 of 10



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 10 of 10



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 17, 2020
FOR:  Resident Policy and Compliance Committee 
SUBJECT: Harassment Policy 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends adoption of the Harassment Policy. 

BACKGROUND 
The member-discipline process is coordinated by the Compliance Division.  Upon notice of an 
alleged violation, staff investigates and should staff identify objective evidence of a violation by 
a member or their guests, staff will send a courtesy notice to the offending party describing the 
allegation(s) and the disciplinary action that may ensue if not corrected.  Staff then monitors 
the situation and if compliance is not achieved, will send a final notice requesting compliance.  
Additionally, the matter is scheduled for a disciplinary hearing with the Board of Directors to 
determine if member-discipline is merited. If the alleged violation has been resolved, no further 
action is required. 

If a disciplinary hearing is necessary, staff will notice the member for a hearing before the 
Board of Directors in Executive Session.  If the Board finds the member to be in violation of the 
governing documents, the Board may impose a fine based on the Monetary Fee Schedule, 
suspend member privileges, and/or consider legal action.   

Violations may include but not be limited to behavior/disturbance, noise, odors and neighbor 
disputes.  

On December 2, 2019, the Resident Policy and Compliance Committee approved adoption of 
the Harassment Policy.  

On December 17, 2019, the Board requested that the Committee review the Harassment 
Policy with Legal Counsel’s updates. On January 15, 2020, the Resident Policy and 
Compliance Committee approved the adoption of the Harassment Policy with Legal Counsel’s 
updates. 

DISCUSSION  
The purpose of the Harassment Policy (Attachment 1) is to set forth guidelines to address 
alleged violations of harassment behavior that occurs in Third Mutual.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None. 

Prepared By: Blessilda Wright, Compliance Supervisor 

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 1 of 12



Third Laguna Hills Mutual Board of Directors 
Harassment Policy
March 17, 2020 
Page 2 

Reviewed By: Francis Gomez, Operations Manager 
Tim Moy, Chief of Security 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Harassment Policy 
Attachment 2: Resolution 

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 2 of 12



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Resident Policy And Compliance Task Force 
January 15, 2020 

ENDORSEMENT (to Board) 

Discuss & Consider the Harassment Policy 

The member-discipline process is coordinated by the Compliance Division.  Upon notice 
of an alleged violation, staff investigates and should staff identify objective evidence of a 
violation by a member or their guests, staff will send a courtesy notice to the offending 
party describing the allegation(s) and the disciplinary action that may ensue if not 
corrected.  staff then monitors the situation and if compliance is not achieved, staff will 
send a final notice requesting compliance.  Additionally, the matter is scheduled for a 
disciplinary hearing with the Board of Directors to determine if member-discipline is 
merited. If the alleged violation has been resolved, no further action is required. 

If a disciplinary hearing is necessary, staff will notice the member for a hearing before 
the Board of Directors in Executive Session. If the Board finds the member to be in 
violation of the governing documents, the Board may impose a fine based on the 
Monetary Fee Schedule, suspend member privileges, and/or consider legal action.   

Director Parsons made a motion to approve the Harassment Policy. Director Engdahl 
seconded the motion. 

By unanimous vote, the motion carried. 

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 3 of 12



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 4 of 12



Harassment Policy 

I. Purpose 
The purpose of this Harassment Policy (“Policy”) is to set forth guidelines for 
harassment complaints received by Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Third”) in 
accordance with the requirements of Third’s Governing Documents, defined 
below, and the law.  

II. Definitions
a. Community – Laguna Woods Village.
b. Golden Rain Foundation (GRF) – the Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna

Hills, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation.
c. Governing Documents – all of the following, collectively, the Articles of

Incorporation; the Bylaws; the CC&Rs; the Rules and Regulations; and
any Resolutions or Policies duly adopted by the Board; all as may be
lawfully amended or modified from time to time.

d. Harassment – see details under Conditions.
e. Member – is defined as any person who is an owner of a Unit in Third’s

development who has been approved for membership in Third in
accordance with the Governing Documents.

f. Resident - is defined as any person who has been approved by the Board
of Directors, or its designee, as applicable, for occupancy of a manor
within Third’s development.

g. Staff - Employees of Village Management Services, Inc. authorized to act
on behalf of Third.

h. Third or the Mutual – the corporate homeowners association that was
formed in 1970 and by 1984 had acquired the assets and liabilities by vote
of each of the 59 individual mutuals within the larger Leisure World (now
Laguna Woods Village), a common interest development, with full
authority to “manage, operate, and maintain” them.

III. Conditions for Harassment

Below are various definitions and descriptions of harassment under both Federal
and California law. While the Association is a private corporation and is not
responsible for enforcing the law, these definitions act as guidelines for Third’s
Board and Staff in determining whether alleged conduct rises to the level of
harassment, and should thus be treated as a violation of Third’s Governing
Documents pursuant to, without limitation, the restrictions against nuisances as
set forth in the CC&Rs.

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 5 of 12



Harassment Policy 
Page 2 of 5 

 Federal Law: Under federal law, "harassment" is defined to mean "a
serious act or a course of conduct directed at a specific person that
causes substantial emotional distress in such person and serves no
legitimate purpose." (18 U.S.C.A.§1514(d)(1)(B).)

 California Law: California defines "harassment" as unlawful violence; a
credible threat of violence; or a knowing and willful course of conduct
directed at a specific person that seriously alarms, annoys, or harasses
that person, and that serves no legitimate purpose. The course of conduct
must be such as would cause a reasonable person to suffer substantial
emotional distress, and must actually cause substantial emotional distress
to the petitioner. (Code Civ. §527.6(b)(3).)

 "Course of Conduct" is defined as a pattern of conduct composed of a
series of acts over a period of time, however short, evidencing a
continuity of purpose, including, without limitation, following or stalking
an individual, making harassing telephone calls to an individual, or
sending harassing correspondence to an individual by any means,
including, but not limited to, the use of public or private mails,
interoffice mail, facsimile, or computer email. (Code Civ.§527.6(b)(1).)

 "Credible threat of violence" is a knowing and willful statement or
course of conduct that would place a reasonable person in fear for
his/her/they/their safety, or the safety of his/her/they/their immediate
family, and that serves no legitimate purpose. (Code Civ.
§527.6(b)(2).)

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) “Final Rule”: 
Notwithstanding the foregoing and that fact that Third has no obligation to 
enforce the law, recent Federal regulations/guidelines enacted by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), do impose certain 
obligations on Third with regard to the investigation and treatment of reported 
harassment. The New guidelines, adopted in August 2016, were enacted in an 
effort to further define and address housing discrimination in the form of 
harassment. In that regard HUD’s new guidelines now deem any form of 
harassment in housing or within housing developments a form of illegal 
discrimination. Based on HUD’s guidelines, homeowners associations, such as 
Third, are considered housing providers, and as such are required to evaluate 
alleged harassment to investigate whether a resident is being subjected to 
harassment to the extent that it may amount to illegal housing discrimination. 
Pursuant to the guidelines Third is required to investigate all reported claims of 
potential harassment of Members or Residents and, as appropriate, take all 
action permitted under the Governing Documents to address such harassing 
behavior.  (24 CFR 100.600.) 

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 6 of 12



Harassment Policy 
Page 3 of 5 

Governing Documents:  While Third’s Governing Documents do not directly 
address “harassment”, those actions which constitute harassment based on the 
above laws and guidelines would fall under the general prohibition against 
nuisances found in Article III, Section 6 of Third’s CC&Rs, and, further, any acts 
of harassment that constitute a violation of law are expressly considered a 
nuisance in violation of the Governing Documents. According to Article III, 
Section 6, Members and Residents are not to permit or suffer anything to be 
done or kept in or about the dwelling unit or otherwise within Third’s development 
which will increase the rate of insurance on any building or other property of 
Third or on the contents thereof, or which will obstruct or interfere with the rights 
of other Members or Residents or annoy them by unreasonable noises or 
otherwise. Members and Residents are also restricted from permitting any 
nuisance in or about the dwelling unit or otherwise within Third’s development or 
committing or suffering any immoral or illegal act to be committed thereon. 
Members and Residents are obligated to comply with all of the requirements of 
governmental authorities with respect to the dwelling unit and all other premises 
of Third. (CC&Rs Article III, Section 6, Use Restrictions.) 

IV. Harassment Complaints and Investigation

A complaint may be registered by calling the Security Department at 949-580-
1400 or the Compliance Division by calling 949-268-CALL or email to
compliance@vmsinc.org. Staff will inform the reporting party to call the Security
Department for documentation of the reported harassment. Staff may also inform
the reporting parties to call the Orange County Sherriff’s Department if and when
the behavior occurs.

Investigating Alleged Harassment: to determine whether or not harassment is
taking place in violation of the Governing Documents, Staff evaluates the nature
of the unwelcome conduct, the context in which the incidents occur, the severity,
scope, frequency, duration, and location of the conduct, and the relationships of
the people involved.

Any complaint received of harassment of a Staff member by any Member or
Resident of Third will be investigated by the Board and Third’s Legal Counsel. No
harassing or inappropriate behavior toward Staff will be tolerated. Village
Management Services may also perform its own investigation into such
allegations and determine whether legal action against a Member or Resident is
necessary to protect Staff and its interests. Third may coordinate its investigation
with Village Management Services, and, in the Board’s discretion, may review
and adopt the evidence and findings of any investigation by Village Management
Services as its own and take appropriate enforcement action based upon same.

In the event that the alleged harassment involves acts or behavior by a Staff
member against a Member or Resident, a complaint may be made directly to the
Third’s Executive Committee by phone to 1-877-888-0002. Third will report such

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 7 of 12

mailto:compliance@vmsinc.org


Harassment Policy 
Page 4 of 5 

conduct directly to Village Management Services to conduct an internal 
investigation into the conduct in question by the Staff member who is a Village 
Management Services employee, and to take appropriate action with regard to 
said employee. Staff members are employees of Village Management Services, 
which is the managing agent for Third, and are not employees of Third over 
which Third has direct authority or control. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Third 
and its Board may address and discuss any complaints regarding Staff members 
and the handling of same with Village Management Services, as may be 
appropriate, in the Board’s discretion.

Except as otherwise indicated above, reports of harassment will be evaluated by 
Staff (except in the event Staff is involved in such complaint) and Third’s Legal 
Counsel to ensure that the Board complies with its obligations under the 
Governing Documents and as required by law, including, without limitation the 
HUD guidelines on harassment. The Board will address the harassment to the 
extent such acts constitute a violation of Third’s Governing Documents and to the 
extent required by law.  

V. Enforcement 
Third is authorized to take disciplinary action against any Member who may be 
found in violation of the Governing Documents, or whose unit or Residents, 
tenants, or guests are found to be in violation of the Governing Documents 
(CC&R Article XIX; Bylaws Article 4, Section 4.5). When a complaint is lodged 
regarding the occurrence of a violation, the Board of Directors has a duty to 
investigate and impose, if appropriate, discipline as set forth in the Governing 
Documents. Discipline shall be imposed after a duly noticed disciplinary hearing 
in accordance with the requirements of statute and Third’s Governing 
Documents.  

If a Member or Resident, or a guest of either, is found to have engaged in acts 
constituting harassment in violation of the law and/or constituting a nuisance or 
otherwise in violation of the Governing Documents, the Board has the authority to 
impose monetary fines, suspend Member(s) privileges, and/or bring forth legal 
action, as more fully set forth in the Governing Documents, including without 
limitation the Schedule of Monetary Penalties, as may be revised from time to 
time. Each Member is entirely responsible for ensuring that the Governing 
Documents are followed by anyone they allow into the Community—this includes 
any co-occupant, lessee, guest, care provider, vendor, invitee or contractor.  

If a non-owner Resident is found to have engaged in behavior constituting 
harassment, Third may, in addition to any disciplinary action taken against the 
responsible Member, exercise such rights and remedies directly against such 
Resident as authorized by the Governing Documents and law, which include, 
without limitation, legal action for a protective order against such Resident to 
protect the interests of the Association and Staff. If such Resident is subject to a 
lease with Lease Authorization from Third, Third may also revoke the Lease 

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 8 of 12



Harassment Policy 
Page 5 of 5 

Authorization and approval for occupancy of such person in Third, and seek 
removal of such Resident through an unlawful detainer action, in accordance with 
Third’s Lease Policy.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and regardless of whether disciplinary action is 
taken, any Member of Third or resident of the Community who serves in any 
capacity as an officer of Third, a committee member, or otherwise as an advisor 
to Third or Staff may be removed by the Board from such position and have any 
appurtenant privileges revoked. Any person holding such officer, committee, or 
advisor position serves at the pleasure of the Board, and may be removed by the 
Board in its discretion if the Board believe it is in the best interests of the Third to 
do so, even if it is ultimately determined upon investigation that no harassment 
took place (see Bylaws, Sections 7.1 and 9.3). 

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 9 of 12



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 10 of 12



Resolution 03-20-XX 

Harassment Policy 

WHEREAS, the Resident Policy and Compliance Committee has 
recognized the need to adopt a Harassment Policy to set forth guidelines 
for harassment complaints received by the Board; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE], 2020, that the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation hereby adopts the Harassment Policy, as 
attached to the official minutes of this meeting; and  

RESOLVE FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of 
this resolution.  

FEBRUARY Initial Notification
28-day notification for Member review and comment to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been 
satisfied. 

Agenda Item # 11b
Page 11 of 12



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 12 of 12



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 17, 2020
FOR:  Resident Policy and Compliance Committee
SUBJECT: Nuisance Policy 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends adoption of the Nuisance Policy.

BACKGROUND 
The member-discipline process is coordinated by the Compliance Division.  Upon notice of an
alleged violation, staff investigates and should staff identify objective evidence of a violation by
a member or their guests, staff will send a courtesy notice to the offending party describing the
allegation(s) and the disciplinary action that may ensue if not corrected.  Staff then monitors
the situation and if compliance is not achieved, will send a final notice requesting compliance.
Additionally, the matter is scheduled for a disciplinary hearing with the Board of Directors to
determine if member-discipline is merited. If the alleged violation has been resolved, no further
action is required.

If a disciplinary hearing is necessary, staff will notice the member for a hearing before the
Board of Directors in Executive Session.  If the Board finds the member to be in violation of the
governing documents, the Board may impose a fine based on the Monetary Fee Schedule,
suspend member privileges, and/or consider legal action.

Violations may include but not be limited to behavior/disturbance, noise, odors and neighbor
disputes.

On December 2, 2019, the Resident Policy and Compliance Committee approved adoption of
the Nuisance Policy.  On December 17, 2019, the Board requested that the Committee review
the Nuisance Policy with Legal Counsel’s updates. On January 15, 2020, the Resident Policy
and Compliance Committee approved adoption of the Nuisance Policy with Legal Counsel’s 
updates.

DISCUSSION  
The purpose of the Nuisance Policy (Attachment 1) is to set forth guidelines to address alleged
violations of nuisance behavior that occurs in Third Mutual.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None.

Prepared By: Blessilda Wright, Compliance Supervisor

Reviewed By: Francis Gomez, Operations Manager
Tim Moy, Chief of Security

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 1 of 10



Third Laguna Hills Mutual Board of Directors 
Nuisance Policy
March 17, 2020
Page 2

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Nuisance Policy
Attachment 2: Resolution

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 2 of 10



Third Laguna Hills Mutual
Resident Policy And Compliance Task Force
January 15, 2020

ENDORSEMENT (to Board) 

Discuss & Consider the Nuisance Policy 

The member-discipline process is coordinated by the Compliance Division.  Upon notice
of an alleged violation, staff investigates and should staff identify objective evidence of a
violation by a member or their guests, staff will send a courtesy notice to the offending
party describing the allegation(s) and the disciplinary action that may ensue if not
corrected.  staff then monitors the situation and if compliance is not achieved, staff will
send a final notice requesting compliance.  Additionally, the matter is scheduled for a
disciplinary hearing with the Board of Directors to determine if member-discipline is
merited. If the alleged violation has been resolved, no further action is required.

If a disciplinary hearing is necessary, staff will notice the member for a hearing before
the Board of Directors in Executive Session.  If the Board finds the member to be in
violation of the governing documents, the Board may impose a fine based on the
Monetary Fee Schedule, suspend member privileges, and/or consider legal action.

Director Parsons made a motion to approve the Nuisance Policy with changes. Director
Engdahl seconded the motion.

By unanimous vote, the motion carried.

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 3 of 10



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 4 of 10



Nuisance Policy 

I. Purpose 
The purpose of this Nuisance Policy (“Policy”) is to set forth guidelines for the
treatment and handling of nuisance complaints received by Third Laguna Hills
Mutual (“Third”), in accordance with the requirements of Third’s Governing 
Documents, as defined below, and the law.

II. Definitions
a. Community – Laguna Woods Village.
b. Golden Rain Foundation (GRF) – the Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna

Hills, a California nonprofit mutual benefit corporation.
c. Governing Documents – all of the following, collectively, the Articles of

Incorporation; the Bylaws; CC&Rs; the Rules and Regulations; and any
Resolutions or Policies duly adopted by the Board; all as may be lawfully
amended or modified from time to time.

d. Member – any person who is an owner of a Unit in Third’s development
who has been approved for membership in Third in accordance with the
Governing Documents.

e. Nuisance – see details under Conditions.
f. Resident – any person who has been approved by the Board of Directors,

or its designee, as applicable, for occupancy of a manor within Third’s
development.

g. Staff - Employees of Village Management Services, Inc. authorized to act
on behalf of Third.

h. Third or the Mutual – the corporate homeowners association that was
formed in 1970 and by 1984 had acquired the assets and liabilities by vote
of each of the 59 individual mutuals within the larger Leisure World (now
Laguna Woods Village), a common interest development, with full
authority to “manage, operate, and maintain” them.

III. Conditions for Nuisance

Nuisance in General: Anything which is injurious to health, indecent or offensive
to the senses, causes an unreasonable disturbance or annoyance, or an
obstruction to the free use of property, so as to interfere with the comfortable
enjoyment of life or property, is a nuisance. (Civ. Code § 3479)

Public Nuisance: A public nuisance is a condition or activity that interferes with
the health or well-being of the entire community or a considerable number of
persons in the neighborhood. (Civ. Code §§ 3479-3480)

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 5 of 10



Nuisance Policy
Page 2 of 4

Private Nuisance: A private nuisance is a condition or activity that interferes with
an individual's use or enjoyment of their property. (Civ. Code §§ 3479, 3481)

Governing Documents: “No Owner or Resident shall permit or suffer anything
to be done or kept within the Project which will increase insurance rates on any
Building or contents thereof, or which will obstruct or interfere with the rights of
other persons in the Project or annoy them by unreasonable noises or otherwise,
nor shall any Owner or Resident commit or permit any nuisance or commit or
permit any illegal act within the Project. An Owner and each Resident shall
comply with the requirements of all governmental authorities. If by reason of any
act of any Owner insurance rates should be increased, the Owner shall be
personally liable for the additional premium” (CC&Rs Article III, Section 6, Use
Restrictions)

Based upon the foregoing provision of the CC&Rs and various statutory
provisions, with regard to Third, a nuisance shall be deemed to be anything that
unreasonably interferes with another Member or Resident’s use and enjoyment 
of his/her/their/they manor, as determined by the Board. Below are examples of
activities that fall into a nuisance category; please note, however, that this is not
an exhaustive list of potential nuisances, inasmuch as any activity that falls within
the above definition of a nuisance shall be deemed a violation of Third’s 
Governing Documents:

1. Noise: Things that interfere with quiet enjoyment such as improperly
installed hardwood floors, residents playing their music or TV at an
excessively loud volume, overly loud conversations, yelling or shouting,
barking dogs, excessively loud vehicles, etc. Excessive and overly loud
characteristics are measured against what a reasonable person in the
same or similar circumstance would consider to be excessive or overly
loud.

2. Odors: This includes second-hand smoke or smoke odors (cigarettes,
cigars, vaping matter/materials and marijuana), strong odors from e-
cigarettes or vaping devices, strong cooking odors, smoke from a BBQ
grill entering other units, etc. The word strong shall be measured against
what a reasonable person in the same or similar circumstance would
consider to be strong.

3. Visual: Draping articles over balcony rails or patio walls, storing
inoperable vehicles in parking spaces, excessive amount of items or
clutter in visible areas, etc.

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 6 of 10



Nuisance Policy
Page 3 of 4

4. Health/Safety: Persons who allow unsanitary conditions to exist in and
around their unit/manor where the accumulation of household items,
belongings and/or materials, that attract insects, pests and rodents or
creates strong odors that are recognizable in the common area or another
unit/or manor, or residents who wash dog feces and/or urine off their
unit/manor balcony onto the property below them.

5. Violation of Laws: A violation of federal or state laws or local ordinances,
including, without limitation, such violations as public nudity, brandishing
weapons which are registered or unregistered at or in the presence of
another resident, the resident’s guest and invitees and/or a staff member
or a Resident, the resident’s guest and invitees engaged in drug dealing
(selling drugs for money or in exchange for some other form of
renumeration) or prostitution.

IV. Nuisance Complaints and Investigation

A complaint may be registered by calling the Security Department at 949-580-
1400 or the Compliance Division by calling 949-268-CALL or email to
compliance@vmsinc.org. Staff will inform the reporting party to call the Security
Department for documentation of the ongoing nuisance violation.

Investigating Alleged Nuisances: To determine whether or not a nuisance in
violation of the Governing Documents is taking place or has occurred, Staff
evaluates the alleged behavior, based upon the written complaint provided along
with all of the information provided to support the complaint, and may further
investigate the complaint before determining if the alleged behavior or nuisance
activity in fact occurred, and whether the impact on other Members/Residents or
units is deemed reasonable or unreasonable to an average reasonable person
similarly situated. This may include, without limitation, further conversations with
the reporting party and neighbors, and inspection of the unit(s)/manor(s) in
question. Staff may also take the following steps when investigating certain
nuisance complaints:

 For hard surface flooring complaints: Staff may perform informal sound
tests that include two Staff members in the downstairs unit at the same
time that two Staff members are in the upstairs unit, with an attempt to
replicate the alleged noise.

 For odor complaints: Staff may perform an informal odor test that includes
two Staff members in the unit from which the alleged nuisance odor arose
at the same time that two Staff members are in the reporting party’s unit,
with an attempt to replicate the alleged odors. Staff may also seek
assistance from the Maintenance Department to determine if the building
structure is a factor that allows for the transmission of the odor that can be
remedied.

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 7 of 10

mailto:compliance@vmsinc.org


Nuisance Policy
Page 4 of 4

If Staff determines that the alleged nuisance in violation of the Governing
Documents has or may have occurred, a warning letter may be sent to the
responsible Member and/or the Member may be sent a notice that the Member is
being called to a disciplinary hearing before the Board or a committee thereof. At
the disciplinary hearing, the Board will consider all evidence and documentation
of the alleged nuisance violation, and the Member may speak and present
evidence regarding the nuisance before the Board makes a decision on
disciplinary action to be taken, if any.

V. Enforcement 
Third is authorized to take disciplinary action against any Member who may be
found in violation of the Governing Documents, or whose unit or Residents,
tenants, or guests are found to be in violation of the Governing Documents
(CC&R Article XIX; Bylaws Article 4, Section 4.5). When a complaint is lodged
regarding the occurrence of a violation, the Board of Directors has a duty to
investigate and impose, if appropriate, discipline as set forth in the Governing
Documents. Discipline shall be imposed, if at all, after a duly noticed disciplinary
hearing in accordance with the requirements of statute and Third’s Governing 
Documents.

If a Member or such Member’s unit/manor is found to have committed a nuisance
violation as defined herein, the Board has the authority to impose monetary fines,
suspend Member(s) privileges, and/or bring forth legal action, as more fully set
forth in the Governing Documents, including without limitation the Schedule of
Monetary Penalties, as may be revised from time to time. Each Member is
entirely responsible for ensuring that the Governing Documents are followed by
anyone they allow into the Community—this includes any co-occupant, lessee,
guest, care provider, vendor, invitee or contractor.

In the event there is an ongoing dispute between neighbors over nuisance
violations or alleged violations, and the Board ultimately determines that the
activity/behavior in question does not rise to the level of a governing document
violation, although the Mutual is not obligated to do so, Staff, on behalf of the
Mutual, may offer informal mediation performed by the Compliance and Social
Services Division to help facilitate a resolution to the dispute. Staff will also
recommend, as an alternative for the complaining and the owner against whom
the complaint is made, professional mediation services offered by the County of
Orange. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this paragraph or this Policy
shall be construed to create a duty on the Board to resolve any dispute between
neighbors or an obligation beyond those duties imposed on Third and its Board
by the Governing Documents or by law.

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 8 of 10



Resolution 03-20-XX 

Nuisance Policy 

WHEREAS, the Resident Policy and Compliance Committee has
recognized the need to adopt a Nuisance Policy to set forth guidelines for
nuisance complaints received by the Board;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March [DATE], 2020, that the 
Board of Directors of this Corporation hereby adopts the Nuisance Policy,
as attached to the official minutes of this meeting; and

RESOLVE FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of
this resolution.

FEBRUARY Initial Notification
28-day notification for Member review and comment to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been 
satisfied. 

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 9 of 10



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 10 of 10



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: Marcy 17, 2020
FOR:  Third Laguna Hills Mutual Board of Directors
SUBJECT: Good Standing Policy 

RECOMMENDATION 
Entertain a motion to approve a Good Standing Policy that provides the definition of good 
standing and implications of a lack of the same. 

BACKGROUND 
The board is obligated to enforce the provisions set forth in the mutual’s governing documents, 
including, without limitation, the declaration of covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC&Rs); 
bylaws and operating rules (collectively governing documents). Mutual members/owners, or 
the units they own, as may be applicable, that have engaged in or are actively and currently in 
violation of the governing documents may be subject to certain disciplinary action and/or 
limitation in their rights and privileges, including, without limitation, suspension of voting rights 
and ineligibility for serving on the board, as described in the governing documents. 

The term “good standing” has been used colloquially by the mutual and the board in reference 
to members who are not in violation of the governing documents. The lack of good standing 
has been used to denote that such members have committed a violation or are currently in 
violation of the governing documents and thus limited in their membership privileges. Despite 
the general use of this term and references made to same in the governing documents, there 
is no formal, comprehensive definition of good standing or accompanying description of the 
consequences of a lack of good standing by a member.  

On September 17, 2019, the Board introduced a resolution for a Good Standing Policy and 
placed the resolution on 28-day review. Subsequently on October 12, 2019, Governor 
Newsome signed SB 323 pertaining to common interest developments elections into law. SB 
323, which goes into effect on January 1, 2020, imposes new burdens on the election process 
both with regard to qualifications of candidates and the procedures to be followed when 
electing directors. As a result, the proposed Good Standing Policy has been updated to reflect 
the new legislation. 

DISCUSSION
The board has determined that it would be in the best interests of the mutual to adopt a formal 
definition of good standing to be added to the operating rules to provide clear guidance on the 
term and the implications for members identified as not in good standing. 

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 1 of 12



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Good Standing Policy 
March 17, 2020 
Page 2 

The proposed Good Standing Policy provides the definition of good standing and the 
implications of a lack of same, and would incorporate such definition into the operating rules as 
a part of the governing documents. The term good standing shall mean that a member is: 

 Not delinquent in payment of any assessment of related charge to the mutual (including 
regular monthly assessments, special assessments or reimbursement assessments); 

 Not currently in violation of the provisions of the governing documents; and 
 Not currently subject to disciplinary action imposed by the board of directors (or a 

committee thereof) after a duly noticed hearing in accordance with disciplinary 
procedures for a violation of the governing documents including any suspension of 
membership privileges as may be permitted by law (such as amenity use), or ongoing 
unpaid fines. 

A member who is not in good standing due to a failure to meet any of the above-described 
criteria may be subject to certain restrictions, such as without limitation, in the use of the 
common area amenities, limits on the authority to rent his/her manor and/or refusal to approve 
architectural requests, in accordance with the provisions of the governing documents.  

In accordance with SB 323, the mutual may not suspend a member’s voting rights for any
election/vote subject to Civil Code Section 5100 and the mutual’s Election Rules (a “Subject
Election”), as a disciplinary measure or otherwise restrict a member from voting in any Subject 
Election unless the member was not a member at the time the voting ballots were distributed. 
Matters that must be considered in a Subject Election include the election and removal of 
directors, special assessments over 5% or regular assessments over 20%, amendments to the 
governing documents, and grant of exclusive use of common area property. 

A member more than 30 days delinquent on the payment of any sums due to the mutual 
including assessments, late fees or cost of collection relating to the same, chargeable service 
or other required fee, or fine imposed by the mutual in excess of $100 as of the date of the 
distribution of ballots for voting on any matter involved in a Non-Subject Election shall be 
ineligible to vote in such an election. According to Section 4.5.3 of the Bylaws, any suspension 
period shall not exceed one year for any individual violation. A member delinquent in payment 
may also be subject to collection, legal action or other disciplinary action.  

Further, no member who is more than 30 days delinquent on the payment of any sums due to 
the mutual including assessments, late fees or cost of collection relating to the same, 
chargeable service or other required fee, or fine imposed by the mutual will not be eligible to 
be a candidate for election to the Board of Directors or to serve as a director on the Board of 
Directors. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a candidate or Board Member shall not be 
disqualified to serve for failure to remain current in the payment of regular or special 
assessments if the member has paid the amounts under protest or entered into a payment 
plan with the mutual. 

A member who is ineligible to serve as a candidate for election to the Board will have his/her 
nomination rejected by the Mutual, and the member’s name and candidate information will not
appear in the election ballot package. If it is determined that the candidate is not eligible after 
the distribution of the ballots, any votes for such candidate will not be counted. Any currently 
serving Board Member who becomes ineligible to serve pursuant to this Policy, other 

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 2 of 12



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Good Standing Policy 
March 17, 2020 
Page 3 

Governing Documents, or applicable statute may be removed by the remainder of the Board 
from such director position. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None. 

Prepared By: Siobhan Foster, COO 

Reviewed By: Francis Gomez, Operations Manager 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Good Standing Policy 
Attachment 2: Resolution 03-19-xx

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 3 of 12



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 4 of 12



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Resident Policy And Compliance Task Force 
January 15, 2020 

ENDORSEMENT (to Board) 

Discuss & Consider the Good Standing Policy 

The Board is obligated to enforce the provisions set forth in the Mutual’s Governing 
Documents, including, without limitation, the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and 
Restrictions (CC&Rs); Bylaws and Operating Rules (collectively governing documents). 
Mutual members/owners, or the units they own, as may be applicable, that have 
engaged in or are actively and currently in violation of the Governing Documents may 
be subject to certain disciplinary action as described in the governing documents. 

The term “good standing” has been used colloquially by the Mutual and the Board in 
reference to members who are not in violation of the governing documents. The lack of 
good standing has been used to denote that such members have committed a violation 
or are currently in violation of the governing documents and thus limited in their 
membership privileges. Despite the general use of this term and references made to 
same in the governing documents, there is no formal, comprehensive definition of good 
standing or accompanying description of the consequences of a lack of good standing 
by a member. 

Director Parsons made a motion to approve the Good Standing Policy. Director Engdahl 
seconded the motion.  

By unanimous vote, the motion carried. 

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 5 of 12



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 6 of 12



Good Standing Policy 
Resolution 03-20-XX; Adopted March XX, 2020 

I. Definition 

For the purposes of the enforcement of the Mutual’s Governing Documents, and the 
exercise by Mutual members of the rights and privileges appurtenant to such 
membership as further described in the Governing Documents, including without 
limitation, the Mutual’s CC&Rs, Bylaws, and Operating Rules and other rules or policies 
that may be adopted by the Mutual from time to time, the term “good standing” shall 
mean that the member (or the member’s unit(s), as may be applicable) is: 

 Not delinquent in the payment of any assessment or related charge to the Mutual
(including regular monthly assessments, special assessments, or reimbursement
assessments) or other any other amounts owed to the Association, including,
without limitation, payment of chargeable services, fees or costs required to be
paid, or fines imposed against the member as a disciplinary measure for violation
of the Governing Documents.

 Not currently in violation of the provisions of the Mutual’s Governing Documents,
including without limitation, in violation of any architectural or landscaping rules,
policies or procedures, leasing or occupancy rules and requirements, vehicle
registration requirements, or other similar ongoing-type obligations of members
and their units.

 Not currently subject to disciplinary action imposed by the Mutual’s Board of
Directors (or a committee thereof) after a duly noticed hearing in accordance with
the Mutual’s hearing enforcement procedures for a violation of the Mutual’s
Governing Documents, including any suspension of membership privileges as
may be permitted by law (such as amenity use), or ongoing or unpaid fines.

o If a one-time fine is levied against a Mutual member for one or more
violations without additional ongoing disciplinary action such as
suspension of membership privileges, the member shall be restored to
good standing upon receipt of payment of the fines by the Mutual.

II. Effect of Lack of Good Standing

A member who is not in good standing, due to a failure to meet any of the above-
described criteria may be subject to certain restrictions, such as without limitation, in the
use of the common area amenities, restrictions in the authority to rent their manor

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 7 of 12



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Good Standing Policy 
Resolution 03-19-XX 
Page 2 of 4 

and/or refusal to approve architectural requests, in accordance with the provisions of 
the Governing Documents. 

a. Eligibility to Vote
In accordance with a new statute adopted pursuant to California Senate Bill 323,
effective January 1, 2020, notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary within
the Mutual’s Governing Documents, including without limitation any provisions in
the CC&Rs, the Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations, the Mutual may not
suspend a member’s voting rights for any election/vote subject to Civil Code
Section 5100 et seq. and subject to the Mutual’s Election Rules (a “Subject
Election”) as a disciplinary measure or otherwise restrict a member from voting
in any such election for any reason other than that such member was not a
member at the time the voting ballots were distributed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in accordance with the Mutual’s Bylaws, any
member who is more than thirty (30) days delinquent on the payment of any
sums due to the Mutual (including, without limitation, any assessment, late fee, or
cost of collection relating to same; chargeable service or other required fee, or
fine imposed by the Mutual against the member) in excess of one hundred
dollars ($100) as of the date of the distribution of ballots for voting on any matter
that is not a Subject Election, shall be ineligible to vote in such election.

In addition, any member who has had his/her/its voting privileges for non-Subject
Elections suspended as a disciplinary measure for violation of the Governing
Documents after a noticed hearing before the Board in accordance with the
Mutual’s hearing and enforcement procedures as of the prescribed record date
for voting on the matter before the membership or Board election, as may be
applicable, shall be ineligible to vote in such election; provided, however, that
such voting rights suspension shall only apply to any non-Subject Election.
According to Section 4.5.3 of the Mutual’s Bylaws, any such suspension period
shall not exceed one (1) year for any individual violation.

Any vote cast by an ineligible member in a non-Subject Election due to either the
lack of good standing from unpaid sums owed to the Association or due to such
member having his/her/its voting rights suspended as a disciplinary measure,
shall be deemed void and shall not be tabulated or counted toward quorum.

b. Collection and Legal Action
A member who is delinquent in the payment of any sums owed to the Mutual, in
addition to being ineligible to vote in non-Subject Elections and subject to other
disciplinary measures that may be imposed by the Mutual after a noticed
disciplinary hearing before the Board (or a committee thereof), shall also be
subject to the Mutual’s procedures for the collection of delinquent sums owed as
described in the Governing Documents, including without limitation the Collection
and Lien Enforcement Policy, which may include the exercise by the Association

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 8 of 12



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Good Standing Policy 
Resolution 03-19-XX 
Page 3 of 4 

of its lien rights, foreclosure action, and/or other legal action against the member 
to collect the amounts owed to the Mutual.

c. Other Disciplinary Measures
In addition to the foregoing disciplinary and enforcement procedures, a Mutual
member (or such member’s unit(s)) determined to be in violation or to have
committed a violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents after a duly noticed
disciplinary hearing before the Board (or a committee thereof) may also be
subject to other disciplinary measures in accordance with the Mutual’s
enforcement procedures, including, without limitation the imposition of fines in
accordance with the Mutual’s Schedule of Monetary Penalties, the suspension of
the member’s (or the member’s guests, residents, and invitees) privilege to use
amenities controlled by the Mutual for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days for
each violation, a referral to GRF for potential suspension of the use of GRF
operated facilities, and the suspension of the member’s right to lease his/her/its
unit for a specified period.

III. Good Standing and Eligibility to Serve on the Board

In addition to the foregoing actions and disciplinary measures to which a member not in
good standing is subject, due to violations by a member, the member’s unit, or the
member’s guests, residents, and invitees, a member’s lack of good standing may also
impact such member’s eligibility to be a candidate for election to the Board.

In accordance with Section 6.2.4 of the Mutual’s Bylaws and Civil Code Section 5105,
no Mutual member will be eligible to be a candidate for election to the Board of
Directors or to serve as a director on the Board of Directors who is more than thirty (30)
days delinquent in the payment of any regular or special assessment sums due to the
Mutual (this does not apply for any late fees, interest or costs of collection relating to
same; chargeable service or other required fee, fines, or reimbursement assessment
which was recharacterized as a fine, imposed by the Mutual against the member) as of
the prescribed record date for voting for the election of the Board. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, a candidate or Board Members shall not be disqualified to serve for failure to
remain current in the payment of regular or special assessments if such member has
paid said amounts under protest or entered into a payment plan with the Mutual for the
repayment of such amounts.

Any member who is ineligible to serve as a candidate for election to the Board will have
their nomination rejected by the Mutual, and such member’s name and candidate
information will not appear in the election ballot package. In the event it is determined
that a candidate is not eligible after the distribution of the ballots, any votes for such
candidate will not be counted thereby invalidating a member’s ability to be seated for
same. Any currently serving Board Member who becomes ineligible to serve pursuant to
this Policy, the Mutual’s other Governing Documents, or applicable statute may be
removed by the remainder of the Board from such director position.

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 9 of 12



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 10 of 12



 
 

RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 
Good Standing Policy 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”) held a 
meeting on [DATE], 2020, at which a quorum of the Board was present; 
 
WHEREAS, the Board is obligated to enforce the provisions set forth in the Mutual’s governing 
documents, including without limitation, the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions 
(CC&Rs), Bylaws, and Operating Rules (collectively, the “Governing Documents”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the Mutual must comply with SB 323 pertaining to elections in common interest 
developments and related topics such as candidate and voter eligibility, which went into effect and 
became law as of January 1, 2020; and  
 
WHEREAS, the term good standing has been used colloquially by the Mutual and the Board in 
reference to Mutual members who are not in violation of the Governing Documents, and the lack of 
good standing to denote that such members have committed a violation or are currently in violation 
of the Governing Documents and thus limited in their membership privileges; and 
 
WHEREAS, despite the general use of the term good standing, and references made to same in 
various rules, policies, and elsewhere in the Governing Documents, there is no formal, 
comprehensive definition of good standing or accompanying description of the consequences of a 
lack of good standing by a Mutual member; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it would be in the best interests of the Mutual to adopt 
a formal definition of the term good standing to be added to the Mutual’s Operating Rules, which 
will provide clear guidance on the term and the implications for Mutual members identified as not 
being in good standing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Good Standing Policy proposed to formalize the definition of good standing 
would also provide clarification on the respective rights and obligations of the Mutual and 
Members regarding elections, candidacy, and voting based on the requirements of SB 323; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Good Standing Policy, Mutual members, or the units they own, as may 
be applicable, that have engaged in or are actively and currently in violation of the Governing 
Documents may be subject to certain disciplinary action and/or limitation in their rights and 
privileges, including, without limitation, suspension of the use of the common area amenities, limits 
on the ability to rent such member’s manor, and/or denial of requests for review of architectural 
applications, as described in the Governing Documents; and  

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 11 of 12



WHEREAS, pursuant to the Good Standing Policy, a member more than thirty (30) days 
delinquent on the payment of any sums due to the Mutual including assessments, late fees or cost 
of collection relating to the same, chargeable service or other required fee, or fine imposed by the 
Mutual in excess of $100 may be subject to restriction of voting rights, but only for those elections 
not subject to the Mutual’s Election Rules and the secret ballot voting requirements of Civil Code 
Section 5100 et seq., and may also  be subject to collection, legal action or other disciplinary 
action; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Good Standing Policy, any currently serving Board Member who 
becomes ineligible to serve pursuant to such policy, other Mutual governing documents, or 
applicable statute may be removed by the remainder of the Board from such director position;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE], 2020, that the Board of the Mutual hereby 
approves and adopts the below Good Standing Policy, which provides the definition of good 
standing and the implications of a lack of same, and incorporates such definition into the Mutual’s 
Operating Rules as a part of the Mutual’s Governing Documents; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of the Mutual are hereby authorized on behalf 
of the Mutual to carry out this Resolution.  

FEBRUARY	Initial	Notification	
28‐day notification for Member review and comment to	comply	with	Civil	Code	§4360 has been satisfied.		

Agenda Item # 11d
Page 12 of 12



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 17, 2020
FOR:  Resident Policy and Compliance Task Force
SUBJECT: Election Rules 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve revised Election Rules to align with Senate Bill 323.

BACKGROUND 
On May 16, 2006, the Board established Election Rules to align with changes in California Civil
Code. The new Civil Code required procedures for appointment of inspectors of elections;
voting by secret ballot and proxy; ballot instructions; publication of election results; retention of
ballots; and deadline for mailing of ballots (Resolution 03-06-25).

Since the adoption, the Election Rules has been revised and approved by the Board one other
occasion to comport with the current Civil Code requirements at the time (Resolutions 03-14-
03).

On January 15, 2020, the Resident Policy and Compliance Committee approved adoption of
the Election Rules with clarification from Legal Counsel. Legal Counsel advised Section III.
Qualification for Candidates and Directors (V) ‘declared of unsound mind’ is a legal 
terminology having to do with mental capacity to make legal decisions to enter into contracts,
etc.

DISCUSSION
In October 2019, new California State Legislation changes to election requirements for
common interest developments passed. The legislation bill known as Senate Bill 323 will
become effective on January 1, 2020 and require changes to the current election procedures.

These updates include, but not limited to: allowing all members the opportunity to vote even if
they have a delinquent account, allowing a general power of attorney to vote; and inspector of
election must send follow notice requirements and include specific language to the notices
sent to the membership.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None.

Prepared By: Blessilda Wright, Compliance Supervisor

Reviewed By: Francis Gomez, Operations Manager

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 1 of 18



Third Laguna Hills Mutual 
Election Rules 
March 17, 2020
Page 2

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: Election Rules
Attachment 2: Resolution

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 2 of 18



Third Laguna Hills Mutual
Resident Policy And Compliance Task Force
January 15, 2020

ENDORSEMENT (to Board) 

Discuss & Consider the Election Rules 

On May 16, 2006, the Board established Election Rules to align with changes in
California Civil Code. The new Civil Code required procedures for appointment of
inspectors of elections; voting by secret ballot and proxy; ballot instructions; publication
of election results; retention of ballots; and deadline for mailing of ballots (Resolution
03-06-25).

Since the adoption, the Election Rules has been revised and approved by the Board
one other occasion to comport with the current Civil Code requirements at the time
(Resolutions 03-14-03).

On January 15, 2020, the Resident Policy and Compliance Committee approved
adoption of the Election Rules with clarification from Legal Counsel. Legal Counsel
advised Section III. Qualification for Candidates and Directors (V) ‘declared of unsound 
mind’ is a legal terminology having to do with mental capacity to make legal decisions to 
enter into contracts, etc.

Director Parsons made a motion to approve the Election Rules and directed staff to
seek clarifying language from Legal Counsel. Director Engdahl seconded the motion.

By unanimous vote, the motion carried.

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 3 of 18



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 4 of 18



 
 

Election Rules 
Resolution 03-20-XX; [Date] 

 
I. Purpose 

These Election Rules (“Rules”) are intended to comply with California statute 
as well as the Bylaws of Third Laguna Hills Mutual (the “Mutual”). In addition, 
these Rules are intended to enhance the fairness and professionalism of 
Mutual membership voting. Where applicable, authority from the Bylaws is 
shown in parentheses. 
 

II. Definitions 
a. Ballot Materials - Ballot, Secret Ballot Envelopes, Pre-addressed Return 

Envelopes, and any other material sent to all Members with the Ballots. 
b. Board or Board of Directors - the board of directors of the Mutual. 
c. Bylaws – the bylaws of the Mutual, as may be amended from time to time, 

applicable to Members in the Mutual. 
d. Candidate - a qualified candidate for election to the Mutual’s Board of 

Directors, including both incumbents and non-incumbents. 
e. CC&Rs - any Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants, 

Conditions and Restrictions (as may be amended from time to time, the 
“CC&Rs”), applicable to Members in the Mutual.  

f. Director - a person who serves on the Board of Directors. 
g. Election Records - tabulated ballots, voided ballots, voided Pre-addressed 

Return Envelopes, signed voter exterior envelopes, the voter list of names, 
parcel numbers, and voters to whom Ballot Materials were sent, proxies, and 
the Candidate registration list(s), Eligible Voter List(s), inspector of election 
(defined below) tally sheets, ballot packages returned from the post office as 
undelivered, ballots received, after the election deadline, and any other used 
and/or voided ballots.  

h. General Delivery or General Notice - the delivery of a document to a Member, 
which can be effectuated by posting the document, pursuant to the 
requirements of California Civil Code Section 4045. 

i. Governing Documents - the governing documents of the Mutual, including, 
without limitation, (1) the Bylaws, (2) applicable CC&Rs, (3) Condo Plans and 
(3) any rules, regulations and policies adopted by the Board from time to time 
that apply generally to the conduct of the business and affairs of the Mutual. 

j. Individual Delivery or Individual Notice - the delivery of a document to a 
Member pursuant to the requirements of California Civil Code Section 4040 

k. Inspector or Inspector of Elections - an independent third party acting as 
the inspector of elections in any Mutual election conducted by Secret 

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 5 of 18



Election Rules
Resolution 03-20-XX

Page 2 of 12

Ballot. The term “independent” means not subject to a current contract 
with the Association and in no event shall it be the Association’s 
managing agent or an employee thereof.

l. Inspection Firm - business hired by the Mutual to conduct the election and
assist the Inspector. If there is no Inspection Firm hired by the Mutual,
those duties will be fulfilled by the Inspector. The Inspection Firm may
also act as the Inspector, if so approved, in advance, by the Board.

m. Member – An owner of a Unit in Third Laguna Hills Mutual
n. Rules – Consist of, without limitation, these Election Rules of Third Laguna

Hills Mutual.
o. Secret Ballot - a ballot used in a Mutual election which is subject to the

secret ballot voting requirements of the California Civil Code or an election on
any topic that is expressly identified in the Governing Documents as required
to be held by secret ballot.

p. Secretary - an elected member of the Board of Directors who has been
elected or appointed as Secretary by the Board.

q. Assistant Secretary - Staff member of the Mutual’s managing agent who
has been appointed by the Board of Directors.

III. Qualifications for Candidates and Directors
a. An individual shall not qualify as a Candidate if the individual is not a

Member at the time of nomination. (6.2)
i. If title to a separate interest parcel is held by a legal entity that is not

a natural person, the governing authority of that legal entity shall
have the power to appoint a natural person to be a Member.

b. In addition to being a Member, in order to qualify as a Candidate (or serve
as a Director, as applicable), the following qualifications or requirements
shall be applicable:
i. A Candidate or Director must be current in the payment of regular

and special assessments, which are consumer debts subject to
validation. This requirement shall not apply to the nonpayment of
fines, fines renamed as assessments, collection charges, late
charges, costs levied by a third party, or other chargeable services
permitted pursuant to the Governing Documents. Further, the
Member candidate shall not be disqualified for failure to be current in
payment of regular and special assessments if either of the following
circumstances is true:
1. The person has paid the regular or special assessment under protest

pursuant to Section 5658 of the California Civil Code; or
2. The person has entered into a written payment plan with the Mutual

pursuant to Section 5665 of the California Civil Code
ii. A Candidate or Director may not serve on the Board if the person, if

elected, would be serving on the Board at the same time as another
person who holds a joint ownership interest in the same separate
interest parcel as the person and the other person is either properly

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 6 of 18



Election Rules
Resolution 03-20-XX

Page 3 of 12

nominated for the current election or an incumbent Director
iii. A Candidate or Director may not serve on the Board unless that person

has been a Member for at least one (1) year prior to the nomination date.
iv. A Candidate or Director may not serve on the Board if that person

discloses, or if the Association is aware of or becomes aware of, a past
criminal conviction that would, if the person was elected, either prevent
the Association from purchasing the fidelity bond coverage required by
Section 5806 of the California Civil Code or terminate the Association’s
existing fidelity bond coverage.

v. To the fullest extent permitted by law, a Director may have his or her
seat declared vacant, and the Director’s seat removed, if the Director
has been convicted of a felony or declared of unsound mind by a final
order of a court.

c. A person may not be disqualified from nomination if the person has not been
provided the opportunity to engage in internal dispute resolution pursuant to
the California Civil Code.

IV. Nomination Process
The Mutual shall distribute to all Members a notice seeking Candidates for
the Board (the “Candidacy Notice”) at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of
the deadline for return of the completed Candidacy Notice to the Mutual. The
Candidacy Notice shall provide a space for any Member interested in being a
Candidate to indicate his or her name, separate interest address within the
Mutual’s development, mailing address (if different), other contact information
and signature, a resolution by the governing authority of a legal entity
authorizing a natural person to run for the Board on behalf of the legal entity
(if applicable), and include a deadline for return of the completed Candidacy
Notice to the Mutual.
a. Any Member eligible as a candidate under these Rules may apply or

self-nominate by signing an application and submitting it to the Secretary
or Assistant Secretary of the Mutual (or otherwise in accordance with the
instructions on the Candidacy Notice)  stating an intention to run for the
Board of Directors. (8.3.5). Any Member submitting a completed
Candidacy Notice will be required to certify on the Candidacy Notice that
he/she meets the qualifications for Candidates and Directors set forth in
these Rules. Any Member submitting an incomplete Candidacy Notice or
failing to submit a completed Candidacy Notice by the stated deadline
shall not have his or her name included in the Secret Ballot or other voting
materials for that election. The application shall include the signed
Candidate's Pledge as attached to these Rules. Every Candidate shall
submit with his or her Candidacy Notice a statement of background and
qualifications, not to exceed 300 words, not later than the time of close of
nominations. It is specifically understood by each Candidate that the
statement will be published. The Mutual shall not edit or redact any
content from the Candidate's statement. Any Candidate statement

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 7 of 18



Election Rules
Resolution 03-20-XX

Page 4 of 12

published shall be accompanied by the following statement: "These 

statements are from the candidates and not the Mutual.  Neither the Mutual 

nor the Board of Directors is responsible for or necessarily endorses any of 

the views expressed in these statements." 

b. A Candidate statement exceeding 300 words in length will be cut off at the
300th word before it is published.

c. The Secretary or Assistant Secretary shall, ninety (90) days before the date of
the election, send notice to all Members of the election date.

d. The Mutual shall provide General Notice (or Individual Notice if requested by
a Member) of the procedure and deadline for submitting a nomination at least
thirty (30) days before any deadline for submitting a Candidacy Notice.

e. The Mutual shall provide General Notice (or Individual Notice if requested by
a Member) of all of the following at least thirty (30) days before the ballots are
distributed: (1) the date and time by which, and the physical address where,
ballots are to be returned by mail or handed to the Inspector(s); (2) the date,
time, and location of the meeting at which ballots will be counted; (3) the list
of all Candidates’ names that will appear on the ballot.

f. The Inspector or Inspection Firm shall send to each Member entitled to vote a
ballot package, including candidate statements, no later than thirty (30) days
prior to the date of election. (8.3.6)

V. Eligibility to Vote 
a. Notwithstanding any other law or the Governing Documents, any Member at

the time when ballots are distributed (or person with a valid, general power of
attorney for a Member) may vote in all Mutual matters.

b. Members shall have one (1) vote per separate interest owned. Memberships
in which two or more Mutual Members have joint or undivided interest shall
have only one (1) vote. (5.8.1.2)

c. Record dates for determining Members entitled to receive notice of a meeting,
shall be established in accordance with Section 7611 of the California
Corporations Code. (5.10)

VI. Candidate Equal Access to Media
a. If any Candidate or Member advocating a point of view is provided access

to Mutual media, newsletters, or Internet Web sites during a campaign, for
purposes that are reasonably related to that election, equal access shall
be provided to all Candidates and Members advocating a point of view,
including those not endorsed by the Board, for purposes that are
reasonably related to the election. The Mutual shall not edit or redact any
content from communications by a Candidate or a Member, but the
Association may include a statement specifying that the Candidate or
Member, and not the Mutual, is responsible for that content; the Mutual
shall not be responsible for the content of Candidate or Member
communications, regardless of whether such a statement is included.

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 8 of 18



Election Rules
Resolution 03-20-XX

Page 5 of 12

b. Prior to each election for the Board of Directors, the Mutual shall hold a forum
("Meet the Candidates") for the nominees within a Golden Rain Foundation
(GRF) facility prior to the date that the ballot materials are sent to the
Membership. The forum will be administered by the Candidates Information
Committee. If no Candidates Information Committee is formed, the Board
may designate a chairperson to preside over the forum. In the absence of
Board action to designate a chairperson,  the President may designate  a
chairperson.  The forum is intended to allow the Membership to meet and ask
questions of nominees. All Candidates standing for election shall be invited to
attend the forum and should appear in person so that all candidates
participating in "Meet the Candidates" are on an equal footing during the
election. However, a Candidate shall not be disqualified if he/she/their/they
fails to attend the "Meet the Candidates" event and may not, by their failure
to attend, demand that the Mutual host another “Meet the Candidates”
forum that they can attend.

c. Access to common area meeting space shall be made available during a
campaign, at no cost, to all Candidates, including those who are not
incumbents, and to all Members advocating a point of view, including
those not endorsed by the Board, for purposes reasonably related to the
election. Such access, as may be applicable, shall be made available
upon the request of a Candidate or Member, at no charge and shall be
scheduled at a reasonable time(s) by the Board.

VII. Proxies
a. Any Member entitled to vote may do so by proxy, where the proxy is

submitted in exchange for a secret or non-secret written ballot, as
applicable, in accordance with the Bylaws. (5.11)

b. A “proxy” means a written authorization signed by a Member or the
authorized representative of the Member that gives another Member or
Members (or a person with a valid, general power of attorney for a
Member) the power to vote on behalf of that Member. For purposes of this
definition, “signed” means the placing of the Member’s name on the proxy
(whether by manual signature, typewriting, telegraphic transmission, or
otherwise) by the Member or authorized representative of the Member.

c. Proxies shall not be construed or used in lieu of a ballot (whether a Secret
Ballot or other written ballot).

d. The use of proxies shall meet the requirements of the Governing
Documents, Section 7613 of the California Corporations Code and other
provisions of law.

e. The Mutual shall not be required to prepare or distribute proxies.
f. Any instruction given in a proxy that directs the manner in which the

proxyholder is to cast the vote must be set forth on a separate page of the
proxy that can be detached and retained by the proxyholder. Neither the
Mutual nor the Inspector will be responsible for ensuring that the
proxyholder votes the votes in accordance with the Member’s instructions.

g. A proxy may be revoked by a Member prior to the receipt of a Secret
Ballot by the Inspector (or receipt of other written ballot by the Mutual), as
described in Section 7613 of the California Corporations Code. A

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 9 of 18



Election Rules
Resolution 03-20-XX

Page 6 of 12

Member’s attendance at the meeting at which the proxyholder casts, or 
intends to cast, the Member’s vote does not automatically revoke the 
proxy.

VIII. Procedures for Elections by Secret Ballot
a. The Mutual shall utilize a Secret Ballot process for elections regarding any

of the following matters:
i. Assessments legally requiring a vote of the Members.
ii. Election or removal of Directors.
iii. Amendments to the Governing Documents.
iv. The grant of exclusive use of the common area unless otherwise

authorized by statute for certain stated purposes.
v. An election on any other topic that is expressly identified in the

Governing Documents or the California Civil Code as required to be held
by Secret Ballot.

b. The Mutual shall hold an election for a seat or seats on the Board, in
accordance with these Rules and applicable law, at the expiration of the
corresponding Director(s)’ term(s) and at least once every four (4) years.

c. Secret Ballots and two (2) pre-addressed envelopes with instructions on how
to return the Secret Ballots shall be mailed by first-class mail or delivered by
the Mutual to every Member not less than thirty (30) days prior to the deadline
for voting. The deadline for voting and the times at which the polls will open
and close shall be noticed with the Secret Ballot

d. In order to preserve confidentiality, a voter may not be identified by name,
address, or lot, parcel, or unit number on the Secret Ballot. The Mutual shall
use as a model those procedures used by California counties for ensuring
confidentiality of vote by Secret Ballots, including all of the following:
i. The Secret Ballot itself is not signed by the voter, but is inserted into an

envelope that is sealed. This envelope is inserted into a second pre-
addressed return envelope that is sealed. In the upper left hand corner
of the second envelope, the voter shall sign the voter’s name, indicate
the voter’s name, and indicate the address of the separate interest that
entitles the voter to vote.

ii. The pre-addressed return envelope is addressed to the Inspector, who
will be tallying the votes. The envelope may be mailed to the address
designated by the Inspector or delivered by hand to the locked ballot box
in the Community Center. All pre-addressed return envelopes received
shall remain sealed and in the possession of the Inspector or Inspection
Firm, or another party, at their direction and designation, until they are
opened and the ballots tabulated in public.

e. The Secret Ballots may be either mailed or hand delivered as follows:
i. Return by Mail

1. The pre-addressed return envelope shall be addressed to the
Inspector. The Inspector may use a restricted-access post office
box used solely for the receipt and storage of voted ballots, in
which case, ballots shall be released only at a specified time on
the ballot return deadline date and only to the Inspector of
Elections. The Inspector may also use an address designated by
the Inspector for receipt of the voted Secret Ballots.

2. A second post office box or address may be used for ballot
packages returned as undeliverable to the Member to which they

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 10 of 18



Election Rules
Resolution 03-20-XX

Page 7 of 12

were sent.
3. Members who desire a receipt for delivery of a mailed ballot shall

mail the ballot by Certified Delivery - Return Receipt Requested at
the Member's expense.

ii. Return by Hand Delivery
1. Ballots returned by hand shall be deposited by the Member into a

locked and secure ballot box located in the lobby of the Community
Center, 24351 El Toro Road, Laguna Woods.

2. At the request of the voting Member, management staff shall provide
a receipt for the hand delivered ballot so long as same shall occur in
the presence of management staff.

3. The lnspector or Inspection Firm shall retrieve pre-addressed
envelopes from the locked ballot box and record their receipt, at
periodic intervals of their selection, until the close of balloting.

4. In the alternative, the Inspector may select an alternate location for
hand delivery of ballots, or require that hand-delivered ballots be
brought directly to the tabulation meeting.

f. A quorum shall be required only if so stated in the Governing Documents or
as may be required by law. If a quorum is required, each Secret Ballot
received by the Inspector shall be treated as a Member present at a meeting
for purposes of establishing a quorum.

g. In an election to approve an amendment of the Governing Documents, the
text of the proposed amendment shall be delivered to the Members with
the Secret Ballot.

h. A Member who owns multiple separate interests must submit separate
sealed Secret Ballots for each separate interest owned.

i. Once a Secret Ballot is received by the Inspector, it shall be irrevocable. If
more than one valid Secret Ballot is received for any Member’s separate
interest, the first secret ballot received will be the one counted; if it cannot be
determined which Secret Ballot was the first received, the Secret Ballots will
not be counted, except for the purpose of establishing quorum.

j. All votes shall be counted and tabulated by the Inspector or Inspectors, or the
designee of the Inspector or Inspectors, in public at a properly noticed open
meeting of the Board or Members. Any Candidate or other Member of the
Association may witness the counting and tabulation of the votes. No person,
including a Member of the Mutual or an employee of the Mutual’s managing
agent, shall open or otherwise review any Secret Ballot prior to the time and
place at which the Secret Ballots are counted and tabulated; provided,
however, the Inspector, or the designee of the Inspector, may verify the
Member’s information and signature on the outer envelope prior to the
meeting at which Secret Ballots are tabulated.

k. Except for the meeting to count the votes required above, an election may
be conducted entirely by mail.

l. The sealed Secret Ballots, signed voter envelopes, voter list, proxies, and
candidate registration list shall at all times be in the custody of the
Inspector or Inspectors or at a location designated by the Inspector or
Inspectors until after the tabulation of the vote, and until the time allowed
by the California Civil Code for challenging the election has expired, at
which time custody shall be transferred to the Mutual.

m. In the event of a tie vote among any number of Candidates, the Mutual will
notice a special meeting of Members and send Secret Ballots to all Members

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 11 of 18



Election Rules
Resolution 03-20-XX

Page 8 of 12

for a runoff vote to break the tie. Such runoff vote shall be conducted in
accordance with the Secret Ballot procedures set forth herein to the extent
they are applicable to a runoff vote. No previously cast Secret Ballots or
proxies from the prior election will apply or be counted in the runoff vote.

n. All Secret Ballots must be legible and clearly marked. If a Secret Ballot is
marked to cast more votes than the maximum number of votes allowed for an
election, the Secret Ballot will be used for quorum purposes only and shall not
count towards the vote.

o. The Mutual shall retain, as Mutual election materials, both a Candidate
registration list and a voter list. The voter list shall include the name, voting
power, and either the physical address of the voter’s separate interest, the 
parcel number, or both. The mailing address for the ballot shall be listed on
the voter list if it differs from the physical address of the voter’s separate 
interest or if only the parcel number is used. The Mutual shall permit
members to verify the accuracy of their individual information on both lists at
least thirty (30) days before the ballots are distributed. The Mutual or Member
shall report any errors or omissions to either list to the Inspector(s) who shall
make the corrections within two (2) business days.

IX. Appointment of Inspector
a. At an open session Board meeting, as soon as possible after the annual

meeting of the Mutual, the Board of Directors shall appoint one (1) or
three (3) lnspector(s) of Election. The Board may appoint individuals to
serve as lnspector(s), or it may hire an independent third party Inspection
Firm which specializes in the administration of elections. An independent
third party Inspector or Inspection Firm may not be a person, business
entity, or subdivision of a business entity who is currently employed or
under contract to the Mutual for any compensable services other than
serving as the Inspector. The Board may also hire an Inspection Firm to
assist the individual(s) serving as Inspectors.

b. An Inspector shall not be a Director on either the Mutual’s or GRF’s Board
of Directors, a candidate for either Board of Directors, or related by blood or
marriage to a candidate for either Board of Directors.

c. An Inspector shall not be an employee of the managing agent.
d. An Inspector shall be impartial and shall not advocate, recommend or even

disclose any personal voting preference.
e. The Inspection Firm shall be instructed to communicate only with the

lnspector(s), with management staff, Mutual legal counsel or as otherwise
directed by majority vote of the Board.

X. Duties of Inspector 
a. The Inspector or Inspectors shall do all of the following:

i. Determine the number of memberships entitled to vote. The
Inspector may rely upon information provided by the Mutual with
regard to the memberships entitled to vote.

ii. Determine the authenticity, validity, and effect of proxies, if any.
iii. Receive Secret Ballots, and determine the validity of those Secret

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 12 of 18



Election Rules 
Resolution 03-20-XX 

Page 9 of 12 

Ballots and their compliance with the Secret Ballot requirements of 
these Rules and the Governing Documents. 
1. Validate and record the number of pre-addressed return

envelopes received from the post office and by hand delivery.
2. Void any Secret Ballot which is not sealed inside a Secret Ballot

envelope.
3. Void (but do not open) any Secret Ballot envelope which is not

enclosed in a pre-addressed return envelope.
4. Void (but do not open) any pre-addressed return envelope, which

does not contain information that identifies the member as an
eligible voter.

5. Void (but do not open) any pre-addressed return envelope that is a
duplicate vote.

iv. Hear and determine all challenges and questions in any way arising
out of or in connection with the right to vote.

v. Determine when the polls shall close, consistent with the Governing
Documents and with the assistance of the Managing Agent. The
Inspector shall remove the Secret Ballots from the locked ballot box in
the Community Center as soon after closing of the polls as is possible,
and will not accept any Secret Ballots for counting after that time.

vi. Count and tabulate all votes.
1. At the tabulation meeting, the seals of the Secret Ballot envelopes

shall be broken, and the Inspector or Inspection Firm shall
prepare the Secret Ballots for electronic tabulation scanning.

2. A Secret Ballot shall be voided if it contains information identifying
the voter.

3. Any Secret Ballot not counted shall be kept separately from
counted Secret Ballots, and the reason for not counting the Secret
Ballot will be noted on the Secret Ballot or its envelope

4. Envelopes and/or Secret Ballots which have been determined by the
Inspectors to be invalid shall not be mixed with the Secret Ballots
to be counted, but shall be segregated by the Inspector, with
explanation of the reasons for rejecting the Secret Ballots in the
Inspector’s final report.

5. Secret Ballots which are determined by the Inspector during the
counting process to be invalid shall not be counted but shall be
segregated from the counted Secret Ballots.

vii. Determine the tabulated results of the election and advise the Board
of same.

viii. Perform any acts as may be proper to conduct the election with
fairness to all Members in accordance with provisions of the law and
all applicable rules of the Mutual regarding the conduct of the
election that are not in conflict with the law.

ix. Deliver, or cause to be delivered, at least thirty (30) days before an
election both of the following documents to each Member:

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 13 of 18



Election Rules 
Resolution 03-20-XX 

Page 10 of 12 

1. The Secret Ballot or Secret Ballot(s).
2. A copy of these Rules. Delivery of these Rules, pursuant to this

provision, may be accomplished by either of the following
methods: (i) Individual Delivery; or (ii) Posting these Rules to an
internet website and including the corresponding internet website
address on the Secret Ballot together with the phrase, in at least
twelve (12) point font: “The rules governing this election may be
found here:”

b. If three individuals are the Inspector they shall act by majority vote, and
the decision or act of a majority shall be effective in all respects as the
decision or act of all. Any report made by the Inspector or Inspectors is
prima facie evidence of the facts stated in the report.

c. An Inspector shall perform all duties impartially, in good faith, to the best of
the Inspector’s ability, and as expeditiously as is practical, and in a manner
that protects the interest of all Members of the Mutual.

d. The Inspector or Inspectors may appoint and oversee additional persons
to verify signatures and to count and tabulate votes as the Inspector or
Inspectors deem appropriate, provided that such persons are independent
third parties as defined herein.

e. The Inspector has the authority to confer with the Association’s legal
counsel in advance of or at the meeting where Secret Ballots are to be
counted. By the adoption of these Rules, the Association’s legal counsel
has been authorized by the Board of Directors to provide advice, as
determined necessary or prudent by the Mutual’s legal counsel, for the
limited purpose of informing and advising the Inspector regarding issues
related to the Inspector performing his/her/their/they’s duties for the
Mutual, and the Mutual waives the attorney-client privilege for that limited
purpose.

f. The Board may, in its discretion, pay compensation to the Inspector
and/or the Inspection Firm.

g. Prior to the election, the Mutual shall provide the Inspector with a current
list of all Members and all other information as may be required under
these Rules or applicable law.

h. If any election meeting is adjourned due to lack of quorum, the Inspector
shall retain custody of such Secret Ballots and bring them to the
adjourned meeting; new Secret Ballots will not be required from any
Member who has cast a valid Secret Ballot vote in accordance with these
Rules.

i. The Inspector may request that the meeting be recessed to allow the
Inspector to complete the counting and tabulation of the Secret Ballots to
another time. Notice of the recessed meeting will be given to all Members
at the meeting where the counting and tabulation occurs and will identify
the location, date and time when the counting and tabulation will resume.
The Inspector will continue to maintain custody of all Secret Ballots until
the counting and tabulation is complete.

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 14 of 18



Election Rules
Resolution 03-20-XX

Page 11 of 12

XI. Election Results
a. Once the Secret Ballots are tabulated, the Inspector(s) shall certify the

election in writing.
b. The tabulated results of the election shall be promptly reported to the

Board, shall be recorded in the minutes of the next meeting of the Board,
and shall be available for review by Members of the Mutual.

c. After the tabulation of Secret Ballots, the Inspector or Inspection Firm shall
return to the post office to pick up any Secret Ballots received after the
deadline. These Secret Ballots shall not be opened and shall be marked
"Void - received after deadline."

d. Within fifteen (15) days of the election, the Board shall give general notice of
the tabulated results of the election, in accordance with the requirements of
the California Civil Code.

XII. Recount or Challenge to the Election
a. The time period in which a Member may challenge an election shall be

subject to the limitations set forth in the California Civil Code and the
California Corporations Code.

b. If there is a recount or other challenge to the election process, the
Inspector or Inspectors shall, upon written request, make the Secret
Ballots, signed voter envelopes, the voter list of names, parcel numbers,
and voters to whom Secret Ballots were sent, proxies, and the Candidate
registration list available for inspection and review by a Member or his or
her authorized representative; provided, however, that the signed voter
envelopes may be inspected but may not be copied. The Member shall be
responsible for all costs and expenses related to such recount.

c. Any recount shall be conducted in a manner that preserves the
confidentiality of the vote.

XIII. Use of Mutual Funds for Campaign Purposes
a. Association funds may not be used for campaign purposes in connection

with any Association election except to the extent necessary to comply
with the duties of the Association imposed by law. “Campaign purposes”
include, but are not limited to, the following:
i. Expressly advocating the election or defeat of any Candidate.
ii. Including the photograph or prominently featuring the name of any

Candidate on a communication from the Association or the Board,
excepting the ballot, ballot materials, or a communication that is legally
required, within thirty (30) days of an election; provided, however, this is
not a campaign purpose if the communication is one for which the
California Civil Code requires that equal access be provided to another
Candidate or advocate.

b. Unless otherwise provided by the California Civil Code, the foregoing
restrictions on the use of Association funds for campaign purposes shall apply
only to the election and removal of Directors.

[End of Document] 

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 15 of 18



Election Rules
Resolution 03-20-XX

Page 12 of 12

CANDIDATE PLEDGE 

Candidates for the Third Laguna Hills Mutual Board of Directors shall confirm 
their commitment to the following: 

I promise that:

1. I will review the CC&Rs, Bylaws, and meeting rules of Third Laguna Hills
Mutual before beginning service as a Director, if I am elected.

2. I will attend Board and Committee meetings except when illness or travel
prevents it, and will review Board or Committee packets before the meeting. I
will come prepared.

3. I will familiarize myself with the basics of Roberts Rules of Order.
4. I will, during the first year of my term, undertake a minimum of three hours of

homeowner association education from a qualified HOA education provider.
5. I have reviewed the Board's Conduct Policy, and agree to follow it.
6. If elected, I will honor the confidentiality of information I receive regarding

closed sessions of the Board, or during closed sessions, as well as
information I receive from Mutual legal counsel.

7. I will attend the Directors' Institute if I am elected; and
8. I will disclose any conflict of interest which arises during my term on the

Board, and will recuse myself from voting on matters in which I have a
personal interest.

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 16 of 18



RESOLUTION 03-20-XXX 

Election Rules 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 323 also known as the new election laws has amended
sections of California Civil Code § 5100, 5110, 515, 5125, 5145 and 5200 and
added section 5910.1 relating to common interest developments; and

WHEREAS, the Board recognized that need to amend the Election Rules to align
with the current California Civil Code;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED; March [DATE], 2020, that the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation hereby approves the amended Election Rules, as
attached to the official minutes of this meeting; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-14-03 adopted January 21, 2014 is
hereby superseded in its entirety and cancelled;

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this
resolution.

FEBRUARY Initial Notification
28-day notification for Member review and comment to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been 
satisfied. 

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 17 of 18



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 11e 
Page 18 of 18



RESOLUTION 03-20-XX 

Deny the Request for Removal of  
of One Sweet Gum Tree – 5381-A Avenida Sosiega 

WHEREAS, September 20, 2011, that the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 
03-11-149, Tree Removal Guidelines: 

 Unless there is a purposeful reason, trees should not be removed merely 
because they are messy, or because of residents’ personal preferences 
concerning shape, color, size, or fragrance. 

 Trees should not be removed because of view obstruction if the 
obstruction is at a considerable distance from the complaining manor and 
therefore causes only a partial obstruction. 

 Trees on slopes should not be removed if the removal will contribute to the 
destabilization of that slope.   

 Trees which are damaging or will damage a structure, pose a hazard, in 
failing health or interfering with neighboring trees, will be considered for 
removal. 

WHEREAS, on March 5, 2020, the Landscape Committee reviewed a request for 
removal of one Sweet Gum tree. The request was received from the Member at 
5381-A who cited the reasons as litter/debris, sewer damage, overgrown, poor 
condition, and a fire, flood, and wind hazard and;  

WHEREAS, the Committee determined that the tree does not meet the guidelines 
established in Resolution 03-11-149 and recommends denying the request for the 
removal of one Sweet Gum tree located at 5381-A Avenida Sosiega.   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 17, 2020, the Board of Directors 
denies the request for the removal of one Sweet Gum tree located at 5381-A;  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.  

 

 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



3/11/2020

1

1

Financial Report
Preliminary as of January 31, 2020

INCOME STATEMENT
(in Thousands)

ACTUAL

Assessment Revenue $2,764

Non-assessment Revenue $177

Total Revenue $2,941

Total Expense $2,232

Net Revenue/(Expense) $709

2

Financial Report
Preliminary as of January 31, 2020

OPERATING ONLY

INCOME STATEMENT
(in Thousands)

ACTUAL

Assessment Revenue $1,686

Non-assessment Revenue $151

Total Revenue $1,837

Total Expense1 $1,636

Operating Surplus $201

1) excludes depreciation

Agenda Item # 13a(1) 
Page 1 of 9



3/11/2020

2

3

Financial Report
Preliminary as of January 31, 2020

INCOME STATEMENT

(in Thousands)
ACTUAL BUDGET

VARIANCE

B/(W)

Assessment Revenue $2,764 $2,764 $0

Non-assessment Revenue $177 $166 $11

Total Revenue $2,941 $2,930 $11

Total Expense $2,232 $3,098 $866

Net Revenue/(Expense) $709 ($168) $877

4

Financial Report
Preliminary as of January 31, 2020

($51K)

$735K

$74K

$65K

Outside Services

Utilities & Telephone

Materials & Supplies

Insurance

Unfavorable Favorable

Agenda Item # 13a(1) 
Page 2 of 9



3/11/2020

3

5

Financial Report
Preliminary as of January 31, 2020

Total Non Assessment Revenues $176,987

Fees & Charges to 
Residents
41%

Investment Income
15%

Laundry
13% Lease Processing Fee ‐

Third
13%

Resale Processing Fee ‐
Third
8%

Miscellaneous Revenue
7%

Late Fee Revenue
3%

6

Financial Report
Preliminary as of January 31, 2020

Total Expenses $2,231,547

Employee Comp. & 
Related
53%

Utilities and Telephones
15%

Outside Services
10%

Insurance
8%

Net Allocation to 
Mutuals
6%

Materials and Supplies
4%

Other
4%

Agenda Item # 13a(1) 
Page 3 of 9



3/11/2020

4

7

Financial Report
Preliminary as of January 31, 2020

NON OPERATING FUND 

BALANCES
(in Thousands)

Replacement 

Funds*

Disaster 

Fund

Unappropriated

Expenditures 

Fund

Garden Villa 

Fund
TOTAL

Beginning Balances: 1/1/20 $16,078 $9,069 $3,626 $73 $28,846

Contributions & Interest 942 103 52 7 1,104

Expenditures 501 83 0 1 585

Current Balances: 1/31/20 $16,519 $9,089 $3,678 $79 $29,365

* Includes Elevator and Laundry Funds

8

Financial Report
Preliminary as of January 31, 2020

FUND BALANCES – Third Mutual

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Garden Villa Recreation Room
Fund

Unappropriated Expenditures
Fund

Disaster Fund

Replacement Funds

Average

Agenda Item # 13a(1) 
Page 4 of 9



3/11/2020

5

9

Financial Report
Preliminary as of January 31, 2020

RESALE HISTORY – Third Mutual

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50
# Units

NO. OF
RESALES

AVG. RESALE 
PRICE

YTD 2018  25 $352,286

YTD 2019 32 $390,066

YTD 2020 24 $417,292

Agenda Item # 13a(1) 
Page 5 of 9



CURRENT MONTH

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
PRIOR YEAR

ACTUAL
TOTAL

BUDGET

Revenues:
Assessments:

1 Operating $1,686 $1,686 $1,686 $1,686 $1,564 $20,228
2 Additions to restricted funds 1,078 1,078 1,078 1,078 1,122 12,935

3 Total assessments 2,764 2,764 2,764 2,764 2,686 33,163

Non-assessment revenues:
4 Fees and charges for services to residents 73 49 24 73 49 24 61 588
5 Laundry 23 18 4 23 18 4 10 220
6 Investment income 26 45 (18) 26 45 (18) 52 536
7 Miscellaneous 55 54 1 55 54 1 71 643

8 Total non-assessment revenue 177 166 11 177 166 11 195 1,988

9 Total revenue 2,941 2,929 11 2,941 2,929 11 2,881 35,150

Expenses:
10 Employee compensation and related 1,174 1,177 3 1,174 1,177 3 1,139 13,940
11 Materials and supplies 87 152 65 87 152 65 90 1,787
12 Utilities and telephone 334 408 74 334 408 74 312 5,542
13 Legal fees 39 42 3 39 42 3 25 500
14 Professional fees 8 8 8 8 1 145
15 Equipment rental 2 2 (1) 2 2 (1) 1 20
16 Outside services 234 969 735 234 969 735 41 11,661
17 Repairs and maintenance 28 32 4 28 32 4 26 380
18 Other Operating Expense 12 17 5 12 17 5 8 199
19 Insurance 177 126 (51) 177 126 (51) 112 1,517
20 Investment expense 4 4 4 4 47
21 Uncollectible Accounts (3) 10 13 (3) 10 13 (8) 120
22 Depreciation and amortization 11 11 11 11 12 136
23 Net allocation to mutuals 135 139 4 135 139 4 94 1,577

24 Total expenses 2,232 3,097 866 2,232 3,097 866 1,853 37,572

25 Excess of revenues over expenses $709 ($168) $877 $709 ($168) $877 $1,028 ($2,421)

Third Laguna Hills Mutual
Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary

1/31/2020
($ IN THOUSANDS)

Agenda Item # 13a(1) 
Page 6 of 9



 
Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary 

Variance Explanations as of January 31, 2020 
 
SUMMARY 

Third financial results were better than budget by $877K as of January 31, 2020. 
Explanations for categories with significant variances are found below.   
 
REVENUE 

Fees and Charges for Services to Residents – $24K Line 4 
Favorable variance resulted from overstated revenue for moisture intrusion chargeable 
services, which will be corrected in February financial statements. 
  
Investment Income – ($18K) Line 6 
Unfavorable variance primarily due to an investment strategy change and timing of the 
quarterly unrealized investment gain/(loss) entry. Less revenue is generated from 
discretionary investment dividends than interest bearing discretionary investment bonds. 
The investment strategy change from bond and treasury bill holdings to index funds was 
initiated after 2020 budgets were approved. The interest generated from bond holdings is 
reinvested, growing the value of the investment. The growth of the investment, net of 
market fluctuations, will be reflected in Unrealized Investment Gain/Loss at quarter-end. 
 
EXPENSES 

Materials and Supplies – $65K Line 11 
Favorable variance due to the late start of certain programs such as building structures 
(carpentry), dry rot repairs, and mailbox replacement. Staff is currently inspecting buildings 
that requires structural and dry rot repairs. Once the inspection is complete, staff will 
provide recommendations and repairs as needed. Variance in materials will remain 
favorable until repairs begin. Also, timing variances resulted in Landscape for lawn 
maintenance fertilizer application and drainage works. To a lesser extent, the variance was 
furthered by less paint required for exterior paint than anticipated for the first month of the 
year.  
 
Utilities and Telephone – $74K Line 12  
For the reporting period, water consumption is 27% lower than budget due to favorable 
weather conditions. Staff uses evapotranspiration (ET) weather data to measure water 
usage for irrigation. Lower water consumption accounts for approximately $29K favorable 
variance.  The remainder of the variance in this line item was caused by an under accrual. 
To a lesser extent, the variance was furthered by electricity due to timing of invoices. SCE 
will reconcile the accounts in March and any missing bills will be billed thereafter.   
  

Agenda Item # 13a(1) 
Page 7 of 9



 
Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary 

Variance Explanations as of January 31, 2020 
 
 
Outside Services – $735K Line 16 
Favorable variance is due to:   
 
 Building Structures – $142K 

This program is dedicated to address the maintenance and replacement of building 
structures. Staff proactively inspects buildings to repair buildings that exhibit dry rot 
and building structural components that are not performing as designed. A total of 
five buildings are scheduled for parapet wall removal in 2020. Preliminary 
notifications have been sent to the building residents. Work will commence in Q2. 
Expenditures for building structures will catch up with the budget as work 
progresses. 
 

 Roof Replacements – $104K 
Replacement of Built-Up Roof (BUR) work is not scheduled to begin until March 
2020, resulting in an anticipated favorable variance for the first 2 months of the 
year. The variance was furthered to a lesser extent in Preventive roof maintenance, 
which began on January 6th, 2020 and by the late start of light weight roof 
replacements which is scheduled to begin in September.  

 
 Waste Line Remediation – $83K 

Favorable variance due to timing of scheduled work compared to budget 
distribution. Primary focus for this year is to work on three-story buildings. Work is in 
progress; as of the reporting period, one building was completed and additional five 
buildings were scheduled for 2020. Additional buildings with high risk for stoppage 
will be evaluated for epoxy lining as work progress.   
 

 Exterior Lighting – $68K 
Favorable variance is due to timing of scheduled work for the Street Light LED 
Conversion Project, which was budgeted evenly throughout the year. The project 
consists of retrofitting the existing lighting fixtures to more efficient LED technology. 
In 2019, M&C conducted pilot programs and chosen fixtures were approved for 
installation in December. The installation will begin in April 2020, with the funds that 
were carried over from 2019. 
 

 Paving – $65K 
Although budget is spread evenly throughout the year, paving programs such as 
Asphalt Repair, Parkway Concrete, and Seal Coat are scheduled from July through 
October. This program will remain favorable until work begins in July. 

  

Agenda Item # 13a(1) 
Page 8 of 9



 
Statement of Revenues & Expenses - Preliminary 

Variance Explanations as of January 31, 2020 
 
 Water Lines – Copper Remediation – $42K 

This project began in February. Scope of work includes 9 building for 2020. Through 
the reporting period, two building were completed. Water lines copper remediation 
project is anticipated to be completed by May.  
 

 Pest Control – $28K 
Fumigation programs are scheduled to start in May and are expected to be 
completed by November.  

 
Insurance – ($51K) Line 19 
Unfavorable variance due to higher premiums at 10/1/19 renewal for property and casualty 
insurance. Insurance premium increases were implemented after 2020 budget was 
finalized. Significant changes in market conditions and a non-renewal situation required a 
new layered program structure to achieve the existing limit in a tight market.  Catastrophic 
losses over the past few years including wildfires in California have led to the change in 
market conditions. 
 

Agenda Item # 13a(1) 
Page 9 of 9



this page intentionally left blank



 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

REPORT OF THE REGULAR OPEN SESSION 
 

Tuesday, March 3, 2020 – 1:30 p.m. 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Sycamore Room, 24351 El Toro Road 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Jon Pearlstone – Chair, Steve Parsons, Annie McCary, Cush 

Bhada, Lynn Jarrett, John Frankel, Robert Mutchnick, Ralph 
Engdahl, Craig Wayne, Doug Gibson 
Advisors: Wei-Ming Tao, John Hess 

  

MEMBERS ABSENT: Reza Karimi 
  
STAFF PRESENT: Betty Parker, Steve Hormuth, Christopher Swanson  
  
Call to Order 
Director Jon Pearlstone, Treasurer, chaired the meeting and called it to order at 1:32 p.m. 
 
Approval of Meeting Agenda 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the agenda as presented.  
  
Approval of Meeting Report for February 4, 2020 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the committee report as presented.  
 
Department Head Update 
Betty Parker, Chief Financial Officer, provided a handout and gave updates on 2021 budget 
carryovers, 2021 budget calendar, 2019 audit, investments and Civil Code 5500 reporting.  
 
Preliminary Financial Statements dated January 31, 2020 
The committee reviewed financials and questions were addressed.   
 
Insurance Update 
The committee was provided with a verbal update regarding the status of the 2020 Statement of 
Valuation Process.  
 
Future Agenda Items 
Solar System Update – Q1 (May) 
Overtime/Temp Help/ Turnover – Q1 (May) 
Chargeable Services Analysis (Semi-Annual) 
NOL Strategies – GAP (Greenlight Approval Procedures) 

Agenda Item # 13a(2) 
Page 1 of 2



Report of Third Finance Committee Open Meeting 
March 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Committee Member Comments 
Director Jarrett commented on the need to work on the Garden Villa Rec Room Fund 
Component schedule for the 2021 Business Plan.  
 
Director Frankel commented on the GRF no longer being a part of the Village Energy Task 
Force and may instead form a research group.  
 
Date of Next Meeting 
Tuesday, April 7, 2020 at 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room. 
 
Recess to Closed Session 
The meeting recessed at 2:52 p.m.  
  
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Jon Pearlstone, Chair 

Agenda Item # 13a(2) 
Page 2 of 2

swansoc
Draft



5948 $18,540,250 $314,242$335,944January $16,125,300

4751 $14,770,050 $314,256$355,429February $18,126,900

**66 $23,445,712 $355,238March *

**61 $20,041,551 $328,550April *

**78 $23,975,536 $307,379May *

**72 $21,298,290 $295,810June *

**83 $27,170,573 $327,356July *

**80 $26,206,000 $327,575August *

**62 $20,171,980 $325,355September *

**86 $26,648,300 $309,864October *

**52 $18,653,350 $358,718November *

**81 $27,517,600 $339,723December *

TOTAL 106.00 $33,310,300

MON AVG 53.00 $16,655,150 $314,249

99.00

49.00 $17,126,100

$34,252,200

$345,687

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

Monthly Resale Report

REPORT PERIOD

February, 2020All MutualsCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE

MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 103/02/2020

Agenda Item # 13a(3) 
Page 1 of 8



Resales - 5 Year Comparison

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Month

0

11

22

33

44

55

66

77

88

99

110

N
o
.O
f 
U
n
it
s

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Resales 5-Yr Comparison - All Mutuals Page 1 03/02/2020 01:46

Agenda Item # 13a(3) 
Page 2 of 8



3224 $12,482,100 $390,066$417,292January $10,015,000

2525 $10,208,000 $408,320$476,668February $11,916,700

**42 $16,639,712 $396,184March *

**25 $10,435,500 $417,420April *

**37 $16,273,033 $439,812May *

**25 $10,290,000 $411,600June *

**40 $17,327,373 $433,184July *

**38 $15,994,900 $420,918August *

**33 $12,643,180 $383,127September *

**41 $16,142,900 $393,729October *

**30 $13,520,950 $450,698November *

**39 $18,319,800 $469,738December *

TOTAL 57.00 $22,690,100

MON AVG 28.00 $11,345,050 $399,193

49.00

24.00 $10,965,850

$21,931,700

$446,980

% CHANGE -
YTD

-14.0% -3.3% 12.0%

% Change calculated (ThisYear - LastYear)/LastYear

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

Monthly Resale Report

REPORT PERIOD

February, 2020ThirdCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE

MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 103/02/2020

Agenda Item # 13a(3) 
Page 3 of 8



Resales - 5 Year Comparison

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Month

0

7

14

21

28

35

42

49

56

63

70

N
o
.O
f 
U
n
it
s

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Resales 5-Yr Comparison - Third Laguna Hills Mutual Page 1 03/02/2020 09:36

Agenda Item # 13a(3) 
Page 4 of 8



02/24/2020 Bullock Russell Real Estate Generations Escrow2136-Q 3 Bullock Russell Real EstateCastilla$210,000

02/13/2020 FSBO Granite Escrow2200-F 3 FSBOCoronado$105,000

02/11/2020 Re/Max Select One Blue Pacific Escrow 2393-2H 3 Berkshire HathawayGarden Villa$355,000

02/11/2020 First Team Real Estate Corner Escrow Inc.3034-O 3 Century 21 RainbowMontecito$265,100

02/13/2020 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.3070-A 3 Century 21 RainbowVilla Nova$280,000

02/04/2020 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 3108-Q 3 Coldwell Banker Best RealtyCasa Vista$323,000

02/13/2020 Uniti Realty Team Escrow, Inc.3143-Q 3 Uniti RealtyCasa Vista$460,000

02/19/2020 Century 21 Award Corner Escrow Inc.3151-B 3 Surterre Properties, Inc.El Doble$549,000

02/14/2020 Fiduciary Real Estate Mor Escrow3188-C 3 Fiduciary Real EstateLas Flores$430,000

02/19/2020 Residential Agent Inc. Corner Escrow Inc.3335-2D 3 Century 21 RainbowSierra$240,000

02/26/2020 Keller Williams Realty Granite Escrow3356-C 3 RE/MAX VertexCatalina$290,000

02/13/2020 Berkshire Hathaway Granite Escrow3367-3F 3 Coldwell BankerAragon$365,000

02/28/2020 Platinum Properties Corner Escrow Inc.3508-B 3 Keller Williams Realty IrvineCabrillo$690,000

02/03/2020 LB Brokerage Corner Escrow Inc.3512-C 3 ReMax Property ConnectionCabrillo$715,000

02/06/2020 Keller Williams Real Estate Corner Escrow Inc.3513-B 3 Laguna Premier Realty, IncCabrillo$885,000

02/19/2020 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.4018-P 3 Realty BenefitCasa Milano$598,000

02/14/2020 Century 21 Rainbow Corner Escrow Inc.5010 3 Longwise GroupVilla Reposa$665,000

02/06/2020 Presidential Real Estate Corner Escrow Inc.5237 3 Century 21 RainbowVilla Serena$855,000

02/27/2020 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Granite Escrow5320-B 3 Laguna Premier Realty, IncEl Doble$460,000

02/10/2020 Century 21 Award Corner Escrow Inc.5345-C 3 Properties With StyleLa Reina$635,000

02/28/2020 Keller Williams Real Estate The Escrow Source5362-Q 3 Rodeo RealtyLa Brisa$400,000

02/27/2020 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Blue Pacific Escrow 5404 3 Laguna Premier Realty, IncCasa Grande$841,000

02/28/2020 Keller Williams Real Estate Granite Escrow5498-B 3 TBDCasa Milano$380,000

02/20/2020 Regency Real Estate Granite Escrow5500-3C 3 Integrated Realty GroupEl Mirador$584,600

02/10/2020 Berkshire Hathaway Generations Escrow5515-2G 3 Realty One GroupEl Mirador$336,000

Third Laguna Hills Mutual

Resales Report

February, 2020

Manor EscrowBuyer RealtorClose Price Model/Style Listing RealtorMutual

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: 1Page 2of03/02/2020

Agenda Item # 13a(3) 
Page 5 of 8



Third Laguna Hills Mutual

Resales Report

February, 2020

Manor EscrowBuyer RealtorClose Price Model/Style Listing RealtorMutual

Total Resale Price:

Number of Resales:

Average Resale Price: $476,668

25

$11,916,700

Median Resale Price: $430,000

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: 2Page 2of03/02/2020

Agenda Item # 13a(3) 
Page 6 of 8



PREPARED BY

Community Services Department February

Period Month 2020 2019 2018 2017 2020 2019 2018 2017 2020 2019 2018 2017

1 January 24 32 25 38 $10,015,000 $12,482,100 $8,807,150 $14,513,062 $417,292 $390,066 $352,286 $381,923

2 February 25 25 29 28 $11,916,700 $10,208,000 $12,600,892 $9,887,500 $476,668 $408,320 $434,514 $353,125

3 March 0 42 38 42 $0 $16,639,712 $16,909,199 $15,185,800 $0 $396,184 $444,979 $361,567

4 April 0 25 46 45 $0 $10,435,500 $18,869,626 $18,847,150 $0 $417,420 $410,209 $418,826

5 May 0 37 38 44 $0 $16,273,033 $15,452,990 $18,157,951 $0 $439,812 $406,658 $412,681

6 June 0 25 37 49 $0 $10,290,000 $16,981,138 $21,011,450 $0 $411,600 $458,950 $428,805

7 July 0 40 24 36 $0 $17,327,373 $9,892,800 $13,526,020 $0 $433,184 $412,200 $375,723

8 August 0 38 40 47 $0 $15,994,900 $17,327,000 $17,967,189 $0 $420,918 $433,175 $382,281

9 September 0 33 24 46 $0 $12,643,180 $12,552,692 $16,020,038 $0 $383,127 $523,029 $356,001

10 October 0 41 34 46 $0 $16,142,900 $14,146,300 $18,804,700 $0 $393,729 $416,068 $408,798

11 November 0 30 28 49 $0 $13,520,950 $10,675,000 $19,847,200 $0 $450,698 $381,250 $405,045

12 December 0 39 28 38 $0 $18,319,800 $13,693,599 $18,509,275 $0 $469,738 $489,057 $487,086

TOTAL 49 57 54 66 $21,931,700 $22,690,100 $21,408,042 $24,400,562

MON AVG 24.5 28.5 27.0 33.0 $10,965,850 $11,345,050 $10,704,021 $12,200,281 $446,980 $399,193 $393,400 $367,524

% CHANGE‐YTD ‐14.0% 5.6% ‐18.2% 8.2% ‐3.3% 6.0% ‐12.3% 10.8% 12.0% 1.5% 7.0% 1.8%

% Change calculated (This Year ‐ Last Year)/Last Year

Percent calculation only includes YTD figures in black. 

Monthly Resale Report Third Mutual

TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE NUMBER OF RESALES

Agenda Item # 13a(3) 
Page 7 of 8



New Monthly Transactions

MONTH 3 Months 6 Months 12 Months 12+Months Leases Renewals Extensions

January 21 21 392 1289 1723 1688 31 35 123 3
February 20 21 402 1285 1728 1699 54 34 83 1
March
April 
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

Monthly 
Average 20.5 21.0 397.0 1287.0 1725.5 1693.5 42.5 34.5 103.0 2.0

Percentage 
Leased 1728 / 6102 = 28.3%

Total 
Expirations

MONTHLY LEASING REPORT
Report Period: 
February-2020

LEASES IN EFFECT Total this 
year

Total last year

Agenda Item # 13a(3) 
Page 8 of 8



Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 1 of 3



Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 2 of 3



Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 3 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



OPEN MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE THIRD LAGUNA HILLS MUTUAL 
LANDSCAPE COMMITTEE 

Thursday, March 5, 2020 – 9:30 a.m. 
 Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room 

24351 El Toro Road 

REPORT 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair - Lynn Jarrett, Annie McCary, Cush Bhada, 
Ralph Engdahl in for Reza Karimi, Jon Pearlstone 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT:  Reza Karimi  

OTHERS PRESENT:  

ADVISORS PRESENT: Cindy Baker 

STAFF PRESENT: Kurt Wiemann, Eve Morton 

1. Call to Order

Chair Jarrett called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

2. Acknowledgement of Media

No media was present.

3. Approval of the Agenda

Mr. Wiemann requested Agenda Item #15, be removed from the agenda since it
does not require committee approval.  Director Bhada made a motion to approve
the agenda, with this change. The motion passed with a unanimous vote.

4. Approval of the February 6, 2020 Report

Director McCary moved to approve the Report. Director Pearlstone seconded. The
motion passed with a unanimous vote.

5. Committee Chair Remarks

Chair Jarrett stated that this neither committee nor staff gets rid of trees lightly.
There are rules in place regarding what constitutes the removal of a tree.

There will be a Gate 14 park ribbon cutting ceremony on March 25.

Agenda Item #13e 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item #13e 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item #13e 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item #13e 
Page 4 of 4



  
REPORT FOR REGULAR MEETING OF THE VILLAGE ENERGY TASK FORCE  

 
Friday, January 10, 2020 – 12:00 P.M. 

Laguna Woods Village Community Board Room 
24351 El Toro Road 

  
MEMBERS PRESENT: Carl Randazzo, – Vice Chair, Judith Troutman, 

Bert Moldow, Brian Gilmore, Cush Bhada, John 
Frankel, Advisors: Bill Walsh, Sue Stephens 

 
MEMBER ABSENT: None 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Juanita Skillman, Elsie Addington, Pat English, 

Manuel Armendariz 
   
STAFF PRESENT: Guy West - Staff Officer, Laurie Chavarria, Chris 

Naylor, Chris Swanson 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
Vice Chair Randazzo called the meeting to order at 12:00 P.M. 
 
2. Acknowledgment of Media 

 
Vice Chair Randazzo noted no members of the media were present. 
 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

 
Item 15 was moved to Item 6a on the agenda.  All items on the consent calendar 
were pulled for discussion. The agenda was approved as amended.   
 
4. Approval of Meeting Reports for September 4, 2019 

 
The Meeting Report of September 4, 2019, was approved as written.  
 
5. Chairman’s Remarks 
 
Vice Chair Randazzo commented on the future format being considered for the 
Task Force; the vote for the new chair of the Task Force; Director Moldow’s list of 
future energy tasks for discussion; the EV charging stations at the Community 
Center; and his concerns about lighting. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13h 
Page 1 of 6



6. Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 

• Manuel Armendariz (917-D) commented on the United & Third Solar 
projects; the energy consultant budget; and the street light project.  

• Pat English (2022-D) commented that the legitimacy of the Village Energy 
Task Force. 
 

The Vice Chair and various Directors and Advisors responded briefly to all 
comments. 
 
6a.  Vote for a New Task Force Chair 
 
Director Moldow accepted a nomination to be the Chair of the Village Energy Task 
Force.   
 
7. Department Head Update 

 
Staff Officer Guy West deferred the Department Head Update to allow the Senior 
Management Analyst to provide a brief summary on the status of the Professional 
Service Agreement with MelRok Operating, LLC. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the monitoring of the EMS systems for each 
Clubhouse. 
 
Consent: 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by the Task Force by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed 
from the Consent Calendar by members of the Task Force, such item(s) shall be 
the subject of further discussion and action by the Task Force. 
 
By consensus, the Task Force pulled all items on the Consent Calendar for 
discussion. 
 
8. Project Log  
 
United Mutual:  
  
• Walkway Lighting – Advisor Walsh commented on getting funding to add this 

type of program for Third Mutual. Chair Moldow commented on the cost for this 
walkway program. Vice Chair Randazzo commented on the process for 
requesting a new walkway light. 

 
• Energy Consultant Services – Juanita Skillman (2154-N) commented on the 

status for this line item. 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13h 
Page 2 of 6



Third Mutual: 
 
• Electrical Systems – Chair Moldow commented on the use of this budget.  

 
• Exterior Lighting – Chair Moldow asked if tree trimming is included in the street 

light project costs. Advisor Walsh commented on tree trimming during the light 
fixture conversion. He would like to see a list made of trees that are blocking the 
new lights so that they can be trimmed. Chair Moldow commented on using the 
old street light fixtures to replace the walkway light fixtures that are not in good 
condition.  

 
Staff Officer Guy West and the Senior Management Analyst responded to all 
questions and comments. 
 
9. Third Mutual Street Light & Walkway Light Outage Report  
 
Chair Moldow commented on the response time from SCE when it is identified that 
there is no power to the pole. 
 
10. United & Third Mutual Electric Vehicle & Electric Golf Cart Report 
 
Chair Moldow commented on the new format for this report. 
 
11. Third Mutual Solar Production Report 
 
Chair Moldow commented on the average monthly production of kilowatt hours.  He 
would like to see a more user friendly report instead of just a data spreadsheet and 
would like explanations added for months where low generation is indicated. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding generation capacity; the solar production reporting 
software package for each building; how staff receives the data for the production 
report; adding this report to the agenda for United Mutual; the possibility of hiring an 
energy manager and solar plant manager; projected kilowatts versus actual 
kilowatts generated and ROI for the solar equipment. 
 
By consensus, staff was directed to contact Third Mutual’s Solar O&M contractor to 
find out if any of the inverters are experiencing more than a 2% loss of Direct 
Current (DC) power.  
 
Staff Officer Guy West and the Senior Management Analyst responded to all 
questions and comments. 
 
12. GRF EV Charging Station Report 
 
Chair Moldow asked staff to provide more information on this report such as dates 
of vehicle charging, especially on the Level 3 chargers. 
 

Agenda Item # 13h 
Page 3 of 6



Discussion ensued regarding revenue percentage collected by ChargePoint; 
separate metering for the charging stations; and Tesla charging adapters.  
 
By consensus, staff was directed to bring a cost to a future GRF M&C Committee 
meeting for the purchase of a Tesla charging adaptor for use with the charging 
stations behind the Community Center. 
 
13. GRF Demand Charges Report (Finance Dept.) 
 
The Financial Analyst summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Task Force. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding SCE billing rates, various rate schedule options; and 
regulating each cooling zone in the Community Center based on usage. 
 
Meeting recessed for a break at 2:17pm, reconvened at 2:29pm. 
 
Reports: 
 
14. Third Mutual Walkway Lighting Locations 
 
Staff Officer Guy West summarized the report and answered questions from the 
Task Force. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the ability to purchase the walkway lights from SCE; 
the possibility of asking SCE to remove their existing walkway light poles; budgeting 
for future walkway light upgrades; and the underground infrastructure that powers 
the lights. 
 
Oral Discussions: 
 
15. Comments on TEC Update from October 18, 2019 
 
Chair Moldow asked for comments on the TEC presentations from the October 
VETF meeting. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding EV charging as a priority; electrical infrastructure in 
residential buildings; providing more guidance to the energy consultant; and using 
the laundry room as a source of power for future EV charging bollards. 
 
16. How SCE Power Outage Notifications Affect Laguna Woods Village (Bert) 
 
Chair Moldow discussed the power shut downs that SCE can perform during 
uncontained fires. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding residents that need a power source for life saving 
medical equipment; local hospitals that are set up to help in an emergency; the use 

Agenda Item # 13h 
Page 4 of 6



of a Microgrid for power outages; and the residents’ responsibility to provide their 
own power source.  
 
17. Discuss the Tesla proposal for installing Solar > 240Kw @ $1.00 per Kw 

(Bert) 
 
Chair Moldow discussed info he found on the internet where you can buy or rent 
your own Tesla residential solar panel system. 
 
By consensus staff was asked to contact a Telsa rep and invite them to a future 
meeting so they can discuss all solar options that apply to the Community. 
   
18. Discuss current cleaning method for solar panels (Bert) 
 
The Senior Management Analyst provided the cleaning method for solar panels as 
specified by our O&M contractor and answered questions from the Task Force. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding microfiber rollers; using vinegar in the water; the 
frequency of solar panel cleaning; and the status of ongoing discussions with JCI. 
 
19. Discuss product use for solar panel cleaning (Bert) 
 
This was discussed under item #18. No further discussion ensued. 
 
20. Discuss alternative solutions to EV charging in Third and United (Bert) 
 
Discussion ensued on what infrastructure needs to be upgraded in order to provide 
charging of electric vehicles in carports and Garden Village garages and the 
associated costs. 
 
21. Discuss alternate methods of financing a Microgrid (Bert) 
 
Chair Moldow discussed two alternative methods for financing a Microgrid - 
applying for a low interest loan to purchase and install the Microgrid and paying a 
third party company who would install the Microgrid and charge the customer for the 
electricity.  
 
Discussion ensued regard how we would get extra fuel for the Community Center 
generator in an emergency; and are other communities considering or installing a 
Microgrid. 
 
Items for Future Agendas: 
 
Third Mutual: 
• LED Solar Street Lights (to be considered after the street light fixture LED 

conversion project is completed.) 
 

Agenda Item # 13h 
Page 5 of 6



Agenda Item # 13h 
Page 6 of 6



Agenda Item # 14b 
Page 1 of 2



Agenda Item # 14b 
Page 2 of 2



 
                 OPEN MEETING 

  
 

REPORT OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION 
MAINTENANCE AND CONSTRUCTION COMMITTEE 

 
 Wednesday, February 12, 2020 – 9:30 A.M. 

Laguna Woods Village Community Center, Board Room 
24351 El Toro Road 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Jim Matson - Chair, Egon Garthoffner, Joe Fitzekam, Steve Parsons 

(in for Jon Pearlstone); John Frankel (in for Cush Bhada), Carl 
Randazzo, Reza Bastani 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Jon Pearlstone, Cush Bhada, Inesa Nord-Leth 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Bert Moldow, Pat English, Bunny Carpenter, Yvonne Horton, Elsie 

Addington; Cash Achrekar, Juanita Skillman, Judith Troutman, Beth 
Perak, Dick Rader, Annette Sabol-Soule 

 
STAFF PRESENT: Ernesto Munoz – Staff Officer, Guy West, Laurie Chavarria 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Chair Matson called the meeting to order at 9:32 a.m. 
 
2. Acknowledgement of Media 
 
Chair Matson noted no members of the media were present.  
 
3. Approval of the Agenda  
 
The agenda was approved as written. 
 
4. Approval of Meeting Report for January 13, 2020 
 
The meeting report for January 13, 2020, was approved as written.  A Scribner’s error will be 
corrected on the official report. 
 
5. Chair’s Remarks 
 
Chair Matson commented that he has been looking forward to this meeting and the 
presentation on the structural assessment of Clubhouse 1. 
 

Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 1 of 4



Report of GRF Maintenance & Construction Committee Regular Meeting                  
February 12, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 

 
6. Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 

 Judith Troutman (3011-B) commented on special open meeting report regarding GRF’s 
project priorities. 

 Toni Barrient (2139-O) commented on adding hearing loop technology inside the PAC 
theatre. 

 Cash Achrekar (201-E) commented on creating a club that will use the experience of the 
Village residents to develop patents. 

 
7. Department Head Update 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz had no update. 
 
Consent: 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by the 
Committee by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed from the Consent Calendar by 
members of the Committee, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and action by 
the Committee. 
 
The Project Log was pulled for discussion. 
 
8. Project Log 
 
Item #11 Gate 16 Driving Range Improvements: Director Randazzo commented on the 
decision by the GRF Board to move forward with this project even though the M&C Committee 
recommended against it; Director Moldow commented on GRF Bylaw 2.1.4 regarding 
Corporate Members approval is needed where the value of the real estate or improvement is at 
least appraised at $500,000. 
 
Item #16 Maintenance Service Center Parking Lot Lighting: Various Directions commented 
on the possibility to install only two lights; the scope of work for this project; a lighting study for 
the parking lot; if the entire lot needs to be lighted, the usage of a newly formed research group 
and hiring a lighting consultant. 
 
Item #19 Shepherd’s Crook: Director Randazzo commented on the reduction of the linear 
footage that will be completed this year. 
 
A motion was made to have staff provide a “statement of need” for the Maintenance Service 
Center Parking Lot Lighting project and bring it back to a future GRF M&C Committee meeting. 
By a vote of 5/1/0 (Director Bastani opposed), the motion passed. 
 
Reports: 
 
9. Garden Center 1 Project Completion (PowerPoint) 
 

Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 2 of 4



Report of GRF Maintenance & Construction Committee Regular Meeting                  
February 12, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz summarized the improvements made to Garden Center 1. 
 
10. Clubhouse 1 Assessment Presentation (PowerPoint) 
 
Staff Officer Ernesto Munoz summarized the report and introduced representatives from SVA 
Architects.  The representatives presented their Clubhouse 1 building assessment report as 
well as three available options for consideration, and answered questions from the Committee. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding expectations for the future of Clubhouse 1; conducting a 
community wide survey where residents provide their ideas on the best use for this Clubhouse; 
the feasibility of leasing the Community Center Building for revenue purposes; other options for 
the design and renovation of Clubhouse 1; the structural assessment of the buildings; as-built 
drawings; and if maintenance repairs will require approval of the Corporate Members per GRF 
Bylaw 2.1.4.  
 
Items for Future Agendas: 
 

 EV Charging Stations at GRF Facilities (General Services) 
 
Concluding Business: 
 
Committee Member Comments 
 

 Director Randazzo commented again the decision by the GRF Board to move forward 
with this project even though the M&C Committee recommended against it. 

  Director Frankel commented on the City of Laguna Woods General Plan regarding 
seismic activity. 

 Director Fitzekam commented that Board Members listened to the experts when 
deciding to move forward with already funded Capital Improvement Projects. 

 
Date of Next Meeting: April 8, 2020 
   
Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was recessed at 11:44 am. 

 
 

__________________________________ 
         Jim Matson, Chair 

DRAFT 

Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 3 of 4



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 14d 
Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 14e 
Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 3 of 4



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 4 of 4



 
REPORT OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION OF LAGUNA WOODS 
SECURITY AND COMMUNITY ACCESS COMMITTEE 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Security and Community Access Committee was held on 
Monday, February 24, 2020 at 1:30 p.m. 24351 El Toro Road, Laguna Woods, 
California. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Don Tibbetts – Chair, Bert Moldow, Jim Matson, Neda 

Ardani, Cash Achrekar, Robert Mutchnick, Ralph Engdahl, 
and John Dalis 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
  
ADVISORS PRESENT: Larry Cunningham and Frank Tybor 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: John Frankel, Juanita Skillman, Annie McCary, Annette 

Sabol Soule, Doug Gibson, and Andre Torng 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Tim Moy, Carlos Rojas, and Debbie Ballesteros 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Don Tibbetts, Chair, called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.  
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF PRESS 
The Media was not present. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Director Ardani made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Director Mutchnick 
seconded the motion.  
 
By unanimous vote, the motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MEETING REPORT 
By way of consensus, the Committee approved the January 20, 2020 meeting report as 
presented.  
 
CHAIRMAN’S REMARKS 
Chair Tibbetts stated this is the last meeting for the Tim Moy, Chief of Security. He 
informed the Committee that the new Chief, Carlos Rojas, is the former Chief of Police 
for Santa Ana. Chief Moy introduced the new Chief to the Committee. Chief Rojas 
addressed the Committee.  
 
 

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 1 of 4



Report of GRF Security and Community Access 
February 24, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 

MEMBER COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Estelle DiNunzio (589-D), President of the Theatre Guild Club, asked the Committee to 
consider the possibility of giving access to RV lot B to a non-resident member of the 
club. Ms. DiNunzio explained that the Club has storage in the RV Lot B and it is difficult 
to coordinate a resident to meet a club member / consultant for audio and stage 
managing to pick up / drop off equipment. She is asking the Committee to grant an 
exception to give a non-resident access to the RV lot without having a resident be 
present. 
 
Roberta Berk (933-B) commented on the Gate 3 arms being placed in the “up” position 
by Ambassadors, if shepherd crooks will be placed on the fencing of Aliso Creek, and 
the policy for when the gates are opened during the rainy season.   
 
RESPONSE TO MEMBER COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
The Committee and Chief Moy responded to Ms. Berk.  
 
The Committee responded to Ms. DiNunzio. The Committee commented and asked 
questions.  
 
Director Moldow made a recommendation to send this issue to the GRF Board. 
Director Matson seconded the motion.  
 
By a vote of 1-5-0 (Director Ardani, Achrekar, Matson, Mutchnick, and Engdahl 
opposed), the motion failed.  
 
REPORTS 
 
Gate Access Update 
Chief Moy updated the Committee on Gate Access Project. He discussed Gate 11 and 
explained that the plan is to open Gate 13 and close Gate 11 to expedite the process. 
He stated that golf carts would be able to use Gate 11, but all vehicles would use Gate 
13. However, there will be a meeting tomorrow, February 25, 2020 to see if it is feasible 
to use Gate 13.  
 
Disaster Preparedness Task Force Report 
Chief Moy reported that there were some changes in the Bylaws. The Task Force is 
now a GRF Task Force with Director Judith Troutman as the Chair and the Chief of 
Security will now be the Staff Officer.  
 
Chief Moy informed the Committee that First Aid and CPR / AED training has been 
scheduled. However, there is a new class that is being looked into to see if it would be a 
good fit for the Community.  
 
RV Update  
Chief Moy informed the Committee that automated gates were installed at RV lot B. He 
also stated that there is no waiting list. An audit was made on the RV lot spaces in 

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 2 of 4



Report of GRF Security and Community Access 
February 24, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 

which deficiencies were identified and spaces were freed up for any future / current 
residents.   
 
Noteworthy Incidents   
Chief Moy presented noteworthy incidents. He explained that there is a wall of 
recognition inside the Security Office where frames picture of commendations are hung 
up.  
 
Chief Moy informed the Committee that a Security Patrol Officer (SPO) was doing 
patrols and noticed a suspicious male walking around. The SPO made contact which 
caused the male to discard something in a dumpster and ran away. The SPO went to 
the dumpster and found items including a ball point hammer. The SPO stopped what 
could have been a vehicle break-in.  
 
Chief Moy also informed the Committee that the Security Division recognized and 
Officer, Dispatcher and Gate Ambassador of the Year:  

 Kyle Belanger was Officer of the Year.  
 Jim Mathews was Dispatcher of the Year 
 Larry and Tina Morkved were Gate Ambassadors of the Year  

 
He also updated the Committee about two promotions that were recently made: 

 Supervisor I Dan Lurie was promoted to Watch Commander (Supervisor II) 
 SPO Iman Movassaghi was promoted to Supervisor I 

 
Chief Moy explained that professionalism and CATE (C=Customer Service, 
A=Accountability, T=Transparency, and E=Efficiency) are very important.  
 
Security Statistics  
Chief Moy reported on the statistics for the Security Department that includes foot 
patrols, notice of violations, crimes, traffic collisions, RV lots, Social Services and the 
Compliance Division. Reports are attached to the official minutes of this meeting. 
 
Chief Moy went through each report and explained certain statistics to the Committee. 
The Committee commented and asked questions.  
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION 
 
DPTF Clubhouse Antennas 
Chief Moy introduced Bruce Bonbright, Radio Officer for the DPTF,  who presented the 
DPTF Clubhouse Antennas. 
 
Director Mutchnick made a motion to approve the DPTF Clubhouse Antennas. Director 
Achrekar seconded the motion.  
 
By unanimous vote, the motion carried. 
  

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 3 of 4



Report of GRF Security and Community Access 
February 24, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS 
 Time length for Permanent Passes

CONCLUDING BUSINESS 

Committee Member Comments 
Director Dalis stated that Chief Rojas’ speaking voice was good and that future 
meetings should be exciting. 

Mr. Cunningham congratulated Chief Rojas for joining the team. He stated that he has 
big shoes to fill. He also stated that it was a pleasure to work with Chief Moy. 

Director Ardani thanked Chief Moy and welcomed Chief Rojas. She also brought up 
customer service and the attitudes of Gate Ambassadors and asked how it could be 
improved.  

Director Achrekar welcomed Chief Rojas and thanked Chief Moy. 

Director Moldow stated that he would miss Chief Moy and his discussions. 

Director Matson stated that this has been a wonderful experience.  

Director Mutchnick echoed everyone’s comments and wished Chief Moy nothing but 
success with his new position. He also welcomed Chief Rojas and stated that he is 
looking forward to working with him.   

Director Engdahl thanked and wished Chief Moy good luck. He welcomed Chief Rojas. 

Chair Tibbetts stated that ever since Laguna Woods Village became self-managed, the 
quality of the Security Division has become better and it should continue to get better 
with the new Chief. He further stated that Chief Moy would be missed. 

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, April 27, 2019, at 1:30 p.m. in the Laguna 
Woods Village Community Center, Board Room. 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Committee, Chair Tibbetts 
adjourned the meeting at 3:38 p.m.  

Don Tibbetts, Chair 

DRAFT

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 4 of 4


	5a Third Board Minutes 2020-2-18 OPEN (final-approved).pdf
	Blank Page

	10a1 3288-B Replace Gate-Fence on Previously Approved Common Area_For Board.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	BACKGROUND

	Attachment_1 - 3288-B - Variance Request.pdf
	Attachment_1 - 3288-B - Variance Request
	El Doble - 3288-B

	Attachment_2 - 3288-B - Photos.pdf
	Attachment_2 - 3288-B - Photos.pdf
	5 x 7 in.pdf

	Blank Page

	10b1 Resolution 03-20-xx THIRD Landscape for 2272-B Approve Request to Remove One Star Pine tree_kw.pdf
	Blank Page

	10b2 Resolution 03-20-xx THIRD Landscape for 3166-A Approve Request to Remove One Indian Laurel Fig tree_kw.pdf
	Blank Page

	11a Leasing Cap and Lease Waiting List Policy - Endorsement 1-15-20 updated.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	11b Harassment Policy - Endorsement 1-15-20.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	11c Nuisance Policy - Endorsement 1-15-20.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	11d Third Laguna Hills Mutual - Resolution - Good Standing Policy - Endorsement 3-9-20 (SG.rev).pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	11e Election Rules - Endorsement 1-15-20.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	12a Resolution 03-20-xx THIRD Landscape for 5381-A  Deny Request to remove one American Sweet Gum tree_kw.pdf
	Blank Page

	13a1 Treasurer's Report - January 31 2020 (GM's Office).pdf
	Third Treasurer's Report 2020-01 Slides
	Statement of Revenue & Expenses
	Third Variance Report 2020-01 for Agenda
	Blank Page

	13b Third ACSC Signed Minutes 2-24-20.pdf
	Blank Page

	13h Village Energy Task Force Report 1-10-20 FINAL.pdf
	Village Energy Task Force Report 1-10-20 FINAL.pdf
	REPORT FOR REGULAR MEETING OF THE VILLAGE ENERGY TASK FORCE

	20200203151957418.pdf

	14d GRF MC Committee Meeting Report (Open) 2-12-20 (draft no signature).pdf
	Blank Page

	14f GRF Mobility & Vehicles Committee 2-5-20.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page



